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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

GROUP STRUCTURE
S E 22
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
(the “Company”)
MtLEBEERERAA
(r2~2% 1)
and

53

its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARLE

Revenue (HK$ million) BA(BEBET)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ARAHEAA
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KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFERES

Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of New Century Group Hong Kong Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present to the shareholders the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (“New
Century” or the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018
(the “Year").

BUSINESS REVIEW

Global economy enjoyed a widespread upswing on the back
of robust investment, surging businesses, consumer
confidence as well as steady job creation in 2017. However,
the China-United States trade war began in the first half of
2018, citing a history of “unfair trade practices” and triggering
the stability of global economy and financial market. Looking
into the investment and financial markets in Hong Kong, the
stock market fluctuated and the property market maintained
its momentum during the Year. Leveraged on the Group's
strong capital base and prudent investment approach, New

Century attained stable growth during the Year.

The Group's revenue increased year-on-year by 10.6% to
HK$202,055,000 during the Year. Gross profit rose year-on-
year by 15.4% to HK$177,104,000. Profit attributable to
owners of the Company jumped year-on-year by 94.3% to
HK$148,611,000. Basic earnings per share was HK2.57 cents

for the Year.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

The Group's cruise ship charter services business continued to
generate steady income. Charter service income from three
vessels — “Amusement World”, “Leisure World" and “Aegean
Paradise” remained stable at HK$106,390,000 during the
Year. Since the existing charter agreements of the three
vessels will be determined on 30 June 2018, the Group has
signed new charter agreements for two vessels, Leisure World
and Aegean Paradise, with the existing charterer for a 2-year
term commencing from 1 July 2018 at the reduced daily
charter fees, while at the same time, the Group is identifying
potential charterer for Amusement World, it is expected that
revenue from the cruise ship charter services will shrink for

the year ending 31 March 2019.

Thanks to the positive property market in Hong Kong and
Singapore during the Year, revenue of the Group's property
investments remained stable at HK$21,635,000. Rental
income from Hong Kong's investment properties increased
slightly by 1.2% to HK$19,927,000 which was contributed by
the increase in rental rate for certain tenancies. Rental income
from Singapore's investment properties surged 48.9% to
HK$1,708,000 as a result of improvement in occupancy rate.
In general, the Group's investment properties in both Hong
Kong and Singapore achieved a satisfactory overall occupancy
rate of 99% with an average annual rental yield of 3.2%.

We adopted prudent approach for our securities trading
business. Leveraging on the favorable market environment, the
Group recorded a profit of HK$77,157,000 in securities
trading during the Year compared to HK$56,889,000 last year.

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFHES

$'¥lZi%?%ﬁfHﬁ“%f%z%EFi%mW
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFERES

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the trade war between China and the United
States may further gloom the global economy and financial
markets, the Group will closely monitor the trend of the global
environment and maintain pragmatic approach for its business.
The Group will proactively identify potential opportunities
which can generate reasonable return in order to improve the
earning capability. The Group will continue to improve its
business structures and to realize synergies between business
segments. The Group is also committed to achieving better

performance so as to maximize shareholders’ value.
On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders and business partners for their

support. | would also like to thank our employees for their

loyalty, dedication and hard work throughout the Year.

Ng Wee Keat
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2018
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS
For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded an
increase in revenue from HK$182,616,000 last year to
HK$202,055,000 this Year.

attributable to the increase in net realized and unrealized fair

The increase was mainly

value gains on equity investments at fair value through profit
or loss from HK$39,253,000 last year to HK$63,015,000 this

Year.

Together with (i) fair value gains on investment properties of
HK$35,634,000 for the Year compared with HK$6,600,000
last year; (i) revaluation deficit on cruise ships recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss of HK$78,000 for
the Year compared with HK$27,201,000 last year; and (iii)
foreign exchange gains of HK$9,237,000 for the Year
compared with foreign exchange losses of HK$1,514,000 last
year, the Group's profit attributable to owners of the Company
was HK$148,611,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018
compared with HK$76,482,000 last year. Basic earnings per
share was HK2.57 cents (2017: HK1.32 cents).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled on
Tuesday, 21 August 2018 (the "Annual General Meeting”). For
determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Thursday, 16 August 2018 to Tuesday, 21
August 2018, both days inclusive, during which period, no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all transfers of
shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 15 August 2018.

T E5T 5 T

EF
HE-ZT-N\F=ZA=+—RHALFERN" K

SE G R AR EAFE182,616,000/% 7T
N E A& F £202,055,0007% 7T © WA H0T5
TEHREAFEEFABRSNBREREZ
BEEARAEREATEERZFEHEAFE
239,253,000 T MEREFE 2
63,015,000/ T °

BEROAFEZREMELATEE KRS
35,634,000/ 7t (1M % 4F & Bl /36,600,000/%8

)i (VA FERGAERRERZBHE
i & 478,000%8 T (M&FEA A
27,201,0007 70) : K (i) A F F 2 SMNE Uk &5
9,237,000% 7T (M = F & Bl &= 51 E & 18
1,514,000 )  REE=FT—\F=A
=+—RALEFE ARAHEEAEBGEEAEER
= A /148,611,000 70 MAFE R A
76,482,000 7T - BRE AR & R2.57 811

S — A 1325l o

EERERRER
RARETRZZE—NFNAZT—H(E
Ho)BTRRBERG ((RRAFKRE]) -
RETHERRBFAGRNG FRRZE
o ARRHH-ZZT-NFNA+T B (2
MM EZT-NFNAZ+—B(EH)
(BREERMRX)EEFEHEBERREER - Nt H
M ARREITERBETARMBAERLTF
B REEHERFBERGRNE ERAR
ZEWR  FRERMBEXHEREBBRREY
BAR_ZE-—NFENATHB (EH=)THF
ME=1THRXERRARBEBZRNHBP
FRoREEEERARAA IERE S

2R KERI18IFAMAPL22IE) EITER ©
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEtmE ST

OPERATIONS
Cruise Ship Charter Services

During the Year, the charter services income of the three
cruise ships, “Amusement World”, “Leisure World” and
“Aegean Paradise”, remained stable at HK$106,390,000
(2017: HK$104,824,000). As at 31 March 2018, revaluation
deficit on cruise ships of HK§78,000 (2017: HK$27,201,000)
was recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
therefore, segment profit increased significantly by 80.6% to
HK$84,129,000 this Year (2017: HK$46,589,000).

Property Investments

During the Year, the Group’s income from property
investments remained stable at HK$21,635,000 (2017:
HK$20,833,000). Rental income from Hong Kong properties
recorded an increase of 1.2% to HK$19,927,000 this Year
(2017: HK$19,686,000) mainly due to an increase in rental
rate for certain tenancies. Rental income from Singapore
properties increased significantly by 48.9% to HK$1,708,000
(2017: HK$1,147,000) which was attributable to the
improvement in occupancy rate. Investment properties
achieved excellent occupancy rate of 99% (2017: 95%) in
general with an average annual rental yield of 3.2% (2017:
3.3%). As at 31 March 2018, fair value gains of investment
properties amounted to HK$35,634,000 (2017:
HK$6,600,000), in which Hong Kong properties recorded fair
value gains of HK$33,900,000 (2017: fair value losses of
HK$4,600,000) and Singapore properties recorded fair value
gains of HK$1,734,000 (2017: HK$11,200,000). As a result,
profit from this segment increased significantly by 133.39% to
HK$52,366,000 this Year (2017: HK$22,448,000).
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Securities Trading

The Group's securities portfolio mainly consists of blue chips
in the Hong Kong and Singapore stock markets. During the
Year, revenue from securities trading amounted to
HK$74,030,000 (2017: HK$56,959,000). The increase
represented a net realized gains on disposal of equity
investments of HK$81,341,000 (2017: net realized losses of
HK$34,401,000), net unrealized losses on equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss of HK$18,326,000 (2017:
net unrealized gains of HK$73,654,000), dividend income
from equity investments at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$13,519,000 (2017: HK$16,938,000) and net fair value
losses on derivative financial instruments of HK$2,504,000
(2017: net fair value gains of HK$768,000). The Group
recorded a profit of HK$77,157,000 this Year (2017:
HK$56,889,000) from this segment.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss amounted to HK$139,154,000.
There were no individual equity investments held by the
Group which value was more than 5% of the net assets of the

Group.

TR E RS

HEEE

REEBZEBHBEEETEREES R MEK
EMSHNESELTRR - RAFER - KE
HFHEBEZHRAART4030,0008 L (ZF
—+ % : 56,959,000 7t) ° B B R R
LB R ERE 2 B 23R I E F 881,341,000
B (ZT—tF BEEHAEBBFE
34,401,000 L) s B AFEETABEN
it & 7 KRBT B 18 §118,326,000/% 7T
ZE—tF KPR W F 73,654,000
BL)  BRATEAEFABROREREZ
f% B U A13,519,0008 70 (= F — + 4F -
16,938,000 7T) - U RITEEM T AZ R
FEEE B F52,504,0008 L (ZF—+
F QN TFEEKZEFFET68,0008T) « KA
FERN AEBREDIHEFER
77,157,000/ 7T (=% —+ % : 56,889,000

BIL) e

RZZ—-NF=A=1+—8 ' A&EEZEAQ
FTEEFAEGRNRERELE B
139,154,000/% 7T, 7~ & [@ 3 % 5 5 (| 5l ik
BRE  ABEEBEAEEEEFENS% -
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEET R 5T

Name of stock listed
on the stock exchange
of Hong Kong

(Stock Code)

REBBRA
thzkH &%
(R REH)

The Hong Kong and China Gas

Company Limited
ERPERRERAF
(0003)

Henderson Land Development

Company Limited
BEKEMERRAA
(0012)

Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited
HEENEERERAA
(0016)

Hong Kong Exchanges and

Clearing Limited
BERGRBEEMARRA
(0388)

SIM Holdings Limited
REERERERA A
(0880)

China Construction Bank Corporation

FEERRTROBRAFE
(0939)

China Mobile Limited

FEBEERAR
(0941)

Annual Report 2018 #£3§

Number of
shares

held as at

31 March 2018
RZZ-N\F
ZA=t-8
HERH
Z¥E

620,000

60,000

32,000

4,000

200,000

3,196,400

32,960

Percentage of
shareholding
held as at

31 March 2018
R=F-N\%¥
=ZA=t-H
BERH
2B

0.0044

0.0015

0.0011

0.0003

0.0035

0.0013

0.0002

Investment
cost as at

31 March 2018
R-ZB-NF
=A=t-H
ZRERA
HK$'000
TET

9,731

2,995

3,946

970

1,387
21,462

2,474

FHELEEERERQA

Market

value as at

31 March 2018
RZB-NF
=ZA=t-H
ZTE
HK$'000
TET

9,994

3,066

3,968

1,021

1,364

25,763

2,371

Percentage to net

assets value of
the Group as at
31 March 2018
R-ZB-N\F
ZA=t-H
EEEBEE
FHEzAIY

0.59

0.23

0.06

0.08

1.51



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

Name of stock listed
on the stock exchange
of Hong Kong

(Stock Code)

REBBRA
thzkH &%
(BB RF)

Industrial and Commercial Bank of

China Limited
FETEERTROABRRA
(1398)

China South City Holdings Limited
EHRERERAA
(1668)

Ping An Insurance (Group)

Company of China, Ltd.
mEFRRE (EE) RIDBERAF
(2318)

Tracker Fund of Hong Kong
REES
(2800)

Bank of China Limited
FEIRITRDER AR
(3988)

Number of
shares

held as at

31 March 2018
R-B-NF
ZB=t-8H
HERH
Z¥E

585,000

400,000

109,200

230,000

4,560,600

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEstmE ST

Percentage of
shareholding
held as at

31 March 2018
RZZF-N%
=ZA=t-H
BER®G
2B

0.0007

0.0050

0.0015

0.0073

0.0055

Total for equity investments in Hong Kong

REBZBEREAG

Investment
cost as at
31 March 2018

Market
value as at
31 March 2018

Percentage to net

assets value of
the Group as at
31 March 2018

RZE-N\&

RZE-N\&E RZIE-N\&§ =B=+-H

=A=t+-H =R=t+-H EREEEE

ZRERK ZHE FHEZEML
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTAEL

3,026 3,937 0.23

755 708 0.04

5,723 8,714 0.51

6,104 6,992 0.41

17,525 19,246 1.13

76,098 87,144 5.11
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEET R 5T

Name of stock listed
on the stock exchange
of Singapore

(ISIN Code)

TR K 2 R 5 Fi
thzkiH &R
GCLEE S 1))

CapitaLand Mall Trust
(SG1M51904654)

DBS Group Holdings Ltd
(SG1L01001701)

Genting Singapore Limited
(GB0043620292)

Oversea-Chinese Banking
Corporation Limited
(SG1504926220)

Singapore Exchange Limited
(SG1J26887955)

Singapore Press Holdings Limited
(SG1P66918738)

SPH REIT
(5G2G02994595)

Singapore Telecommunications
Limited
(SG1T75931496)

Suntec Real Estate Investment Trust
(SG1Q52922370)

United Overseas Bank Limited
(SGTM31001969)

Crand total for equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
BRFEEMABRNRERE B

Annual Report 2018 #£3§

Number of
shares

held as at

31 March 2018
RZZ2-N\§
=ZA=t-8
BEERG
ZEE

300,000

40,000

500,000

40,000

300,000

400,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

30,000

Percentage of
shareholding
held as at

31 March 2018
RZZ-NF
ZA=+-H
FER®G
AN

0.0085

0.0016

0.0042

0.0010

0.0280

0.0250

0.0117

0.0018

00113

0.0018

Total for equity investments in Singapore

RE IR B R E A G

FHELEEERERQA

Percentage to net

Investment Market assets value of

cost as at value as at  the Group as at

31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2018

RZZ-N\F

RZZ-N\F RZB-N\f =ZA=+-H

ZA=t-8 ZA=+-H EAREEE

ZREBF ZM{E FHE2AEIN
(equivalent to) (equivalent to)
(HER) (HER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET

3,726 3,732 0.22

3,723 6,578 0.39

3,270 3,229 0.19

2,086 3,066 0.18

13,435 13,222 0.78

6,534 6,028 0.35

1,782 1,785 0.10

6,570 6,046 0.35

3,389 3,391 0.20

3,302 4933 0.29

47,817 52,010 3.05

123915 139,154 8.16




New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B EST R 5T

Information on the performance of the Group's equity AEEBEZHREXKERHEZ_ZT—N\F=H
investments for the year ended 31 March 2018 was as below: =+—HIFFEZXBEHERNOT

Net realized gains Net unrealized fair Dividend

on disposal for value losses for income for

the year ended the year ended the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2018

BE BZE
—E-NE —E-N\E Bz
=A=+—H =A=+-—H —E-NF
LtFEFEREEZ IEFEZRER =A=t+—H
EERKNEFE AFYEEFEFHE LEFEZRERA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Stocks listed on the stock exchange of Hong Kong 64,102 (15,034) 8,590
REBE R L 2k m
Stocks listed on the stock exchange of Singapore 17,239 (3,292) 4,929
PRI BEHR T L2 i
Total 81,341 (18,326) 13,519
A%
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES RAREE

As at 31 March 2018, the Company had outstanding RZ-FT—AF=ZA=+—H ARFHTIR
guarantees of HK$216,910,000 (31 March 2017: 1ITZREEERTER216,910,0008T(=F
HK$194,870,000) given to banks to secure general credit ~——t#=A=1—H :194,870,00087T) -
facilities for certain subsidiaries. Credit facilities in an aggregate {FRE THE AR ER —REERE 2K
amount of HK$22,740,000 (31 March 2017: HK$22,853,000) - RBWEHR  ZEMEB AR ECHAAH
had been utilized by the subsidiaries from such guarantees at ~ 22,740,000 (ZF—+t&=H=+—H":
the end of the reporting period. 22,853,000/87T) 2 EERE Z FEIRHE o
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B EST R 5T

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS
As at 31 March 2018, some of the Group's land and building

and investment properties with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$474,533,000 (31 March 2017: HK$430,101,000),
some of the Group's trade receivables (rental) with a carrying
amount of HK$78,000 (31 March 2017: HK$119,000) and
the Group's equity investments with a carrying amount of
HK$139,154,000 (31 March 2017: HK$422,001,000) were
pledged to banks and securities dealers for loan facilities
worth HK$265,414,000 (31 March 2017: HK$335,486,000)
granted to the Group. As at 31 March 2018, HK$23,437,000
(31 March 2017: HK$23,383,000) of the loan facilities had
been utilized by the Group.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had net current assets of
HK$945,361,000 (31 March 2017: HK$782,506,000) and
equity attributable to owners of the Company worth
HK$1,636,670,000 (31 March 2017: HK$1,474,493,000).

The Group's total indebtedness (representing the aggregate
amount of interest-bearing loans from banks and securities
dealers) was HK$23,437,000 (31 March 2017:
HK$23,383,000), which were denominated in Singapore
dollar and Hong Kong dollar and charged at floating interest
rates. They were secured by mortgages over the Group's
investment properties with a carrying amount of
HK$142,324,000 (31 March 2017: HK$324,660,000), equity
investments with a carrying amount of HK$48,118,000 (31
March 2017: HK$52,286,000) and assignment of some of
the Group's trade receivables (rental) with a carrying amount
of HK$5,000 (31 March 2017: HK$119,000).
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Regarding total indebtedness, HK$1,574,000 (31 March
2017: HK$2,245,000) will be repayable within one year or on
demand, HK$3,740,000 (31 March 2017: HK$3,428,000) will
be repayable from the second to fifth years and the remaining
balance of HK$18,123,000 (31 March 2017: HK$17,710,000)

will be repayable after five years.

The Group's gearing ratio (total indebtedness divided by
equity attributable to owners of the Company) at the end of
the reporting period remained as 0.01 (31 March 2017:
0.02).

EXPOSURE TO EQUITY PRICES, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
AND INTEREST RATE RISKS

The Group is exposed to risks arising from individual equity
investments classified as trading equity investments. The
Group's investments are listed on the stock exchanges of
Hong Kong and Singapore and are valued at quoted market

prices at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
were held predominately in Hong Kong dollar, Singapore dollar
and United States dollar. The Group's borrowings were
denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Singapore dollar at
floating interest rates. The Group has an exposure to the risk
of change in interest rates arising primarily to its long-term
debt obligations with floating interest rates. In the opinion of
the directors, the Group has no significant interest rate risk.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management closely monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

EHRES BT
EREEBTE 1,574,000 T (ZE—+t4F
—A=+—H 22450008 T) BR—F A
s EEREIE - 3,740,000 T (- B —+4F
—A=+—H 34280008 L) BRE_=
FERAFANEERHEES,123,0008 T (ZF

—+HF=H=+—H:17,710,000/ 7t) /&

RMERER NEBZEREEBEL R (&
BEBBRIARDREA AEEEZ) #155°0.01
—E—+E=A=+—H:002) ¢

IREER ~ SMNE R F R E b

AR ER B 3 A B 51 A AT S IR E MR
BEREMELENER AKEZKREEEL
M2 EFR LT MEEERS
REREMRABHTE -

R-ZE-N\F=ZA=+t—8 A&EEZH=T
EBREEFEWETENUEBT IR TRET
RIEE BN - REBEZEE T AB T RF
BRIRGEEEMN  WIRFHMKRGFE - A&
B2 MR E R BRE ERF B RG
BZERBBEEAEZE EZERR AKELE
BERMERER - N&E B AT &N E PR
oA BEEESTUYESRIIERR I
KRBT EEEBHPERIMNERR
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B EST R 5T

HUMAN RESOURCES
As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a total of 23 staff in

Hong Kong. Remuneration packages for employees and
directors are structured according to market terms as well as
individual performance and experience. Benefits plans
maintained by the Group include mandatory provident fund
scheme, medical insurance, share option scheme and
discretionary bonuses. As at 31 March 2018, the Group had
386,640,000 outstanding share options granted to eligible

directors and employees of the Group.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In view of the existing charter agreements for all our three
vessels — “Amusement World", “Leisure World” and "Aegean
Paradise”, which will be determined on 30 June 2018, the
Group, on 10 May 2018, entered into charter agreements in
relation to the three vessels with Everwin Cruise Limited
("Everwin Cruise”), a connected person of the Company,
which is wholly owned by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng, a
controlling shareholder of the Company, for a period
commencing from 1 July 2018 and ending on 31 March
2021.

However, on 14 June 2018, the Group entered into new
charter agreements with the existing charterer for chartering
Leisure World and Aegean Paradise for a 2-year term
commencing from 1 July 2018. In turn, on the same date, the
Group entered into the termination agreements with Everwin
Cruise to terminate all three charter agreements dated 10 May
2018. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 10 May, 4 June and 14 June 2018

respectively.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) is committed
to maintaining high standards of corporate governance
practices at all times. The Board believes that good corporate
governance helps the Company to safeguard the interests of
its shareholders and to enhance the performance of the

Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the "Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the year ended 31 March
2018.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors of
the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all directors of
the Company, all of them confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine
members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
Biographical details of the directors (including the relationships
among members of the Board) are set out under the section
headed “Directors’ Biographies” on pages 44 to 49 of this
annual report. In compliance with code provision A.1.8 of the
CG Code, the Company has arranged appropriate insurance
cover in respect of potential legal actions against its directors.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in order to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed

and relevant.

During the Year, all directors have participated various external
seminars relevant to the directors’ duties and responsibilities
and the accounting issues. The Company has received from
each of the directors their individual training record for the

Year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be
separate. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing. As disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 2 March 2012, Mr.
Wilson Ng resigned as the Chairman of the Company on 2
March 2012 and on the same day Mr. Ng Wee Keat was re-
designated from the Chief Executive Officer to the Chairman
of the Company. The Company is in the process of identifying
suitable candidate with appropriate experience to be the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and will make an
announcement as soon as a suitable candidate has been
identified.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a specific
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years as referred to the bye-law 87
of the Company where provides that at each annual general
meeting one-third of the directors of the Company for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Group's affairs and to
assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has
established three board committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Audit Committee (collectively the “Committees”) with clearly-
defined written terms of references. The Board delegated the
authority to the Committees and provided the Committees
with sufficient resources to perform their duties. Upon
reasonable request, they are able to seek independent

professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five
members, including two executive directors, namely Mr. Ng
Wee Keat and Mr. Yu Wai Man and three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan
Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming. Mr. Cheung Chun
Kwok is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Company has adopted the model whereby the
Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all directors’ and
senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for

developing remuneration policy;

2. to review and approve the management's remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals

and objectives;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of non-executive directors;

4. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment

conditions elsewhere in the Group;

5. to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair

and not excessive;

6. to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and

appropriate; and

7. to ensure that no director or any of his associates is

involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the Year:

1. to review the remuneration package of the directors; and

2. to recommend to the Board on the year-end bonus of

executive directors.

Details of the directors’ and five highest paid employees’

emoluments are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises five members,
including two executive directors, namely Mr. Ng Wee Keat
and Mr. Yu Wai Man and three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin,
Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming. Mr. Ng Wee Keat is the

chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee

are:

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the

Company's corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for

directorships;

3. to assess the independence of independent non-

executive directors; and
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and

succession planning for directors, in particular the

chairman and the chief executive.

The following is a summary of work performed by the
Nomination Committee during the Year:

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

2. to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and

3. to recommend to the Board on the re-appointment of

the retiring directors.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in September
2013, which set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. All board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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FHELEEERERQA

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the
Board. After assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills and
experience to the Company's business, the Nomination
Committee considered that the existing Board was
appropriately structured and no change was required. The
Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy,

as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan
Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming. One of the
independent non-executive directors possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules. Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
its resignation or dismissal;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s

independence and objectivity;

3. to develop and implement policy on engaging an external

auditor to supply non-audit services;

4. to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report, and to review significant financial reporting

judgements contained in them;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

5. to review the Company's financial controls, the risk

management and internal control systems;

6. to review the Group's financial and accounting policies

and practices; and

7. to review the external auditor's management letter and to
ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to
the issues raised in the external auditor's management

letter.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit

Committee during the Year:

1. to review with the management and auditor of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, to discuss the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017 and to recommend

them to the Board for approval;

2. to review with the management and auditor of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, to discuss the unaudited interim financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September
2017 and to recommend them to the Board for approval;

and

3. to review the risk management and internal control

systems of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEEGRE

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND EENZEEKEHFETLE
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the meetings of the REAEEFRXN - KREEHFEETS  HMWES
Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination @ BERLEe EERZTEeexmULEE
Committee, the Audit Committee and the annual general EAF XK@z HFELEITIWOT -

meeting during the Year is set out below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings held

HE/ BIEERY

Annual

Remuneration Nomination Audit General

Directors Board Committee Committee ~ Committee Meeting

RREF

Bz Eze FMzEe REZEE EHZE® VN

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Ng Wee Keat BREGLE 6/7 0/2 0/1 - 1/1

Ms. Sio lon Kuan BEEZT 6/7 - - - 1/1

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda BB 5/7 - - - 1/1

Ms. Lilian Ng BERELL 5/7 - - - 1/1

Ms. Chen Ka Chee RiEEL T 6/7 - - - 0/1

Mr. Yu Wai Man REXEE 7/7 2/2 1/1 - 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BV EHTES

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok AR E /1 2/2 1/1 2/2 1/

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth BRREE /7 2/2 1/1 2/2 1/1

Mr. Ho Yau Ming IRALE 7/7 22 1/1 2/2 1/1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance functions as required under the CG
Code:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make

recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior

management;

3. to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

directors; and

5. to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the above corporate governance functions
have been performed and executed by the Board and the
Board has reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG
Code.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
During the Year under review, the remuneration paid to the
Company's auditor, Ernst & Young for audit and non-audit

services to the Group, is set out as below:

Services rendered Fee paid/payable

HK$

Audit services 1,435,000
Non-audit services

Interim review 338,000
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FHELEEERERQA

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2018.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt

upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 61 to 69 of this

annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems for the Group. The systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or

loss.

The management of the Company has established internal
audit function. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance of applicable laws, rules

and regulations.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

The Board has overseen the Company's risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems which covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls has been
conducted, and considered that the systems are effective and
adequate. The Board has also reviewed the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications, experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions and considered that they are

adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Ms. Ng Suet Vi, is
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. During the Year, Ms. Ng has taken no less than 15

hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Company, shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Send Enquiries to the Board

The Company's corporate website (http://www.ncgrp.com.hk)
provides postal address, email address, fax number and
telephone number by which shareholders of the Company may

at any time address their concerns or enquires to the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

(i) The procedures for proposing a person for election as a

(i)

director of the Company at shareholders’ meetings are

set out in the Corporate Governance section of the

Company's corporate website.

The procedures for putting forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings are as follows:

(2)

(b)

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company may submit a
written requisition to propose resolution(s) through

requisition of an extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of
the voting rights or not less than 100 shareholders
of the Company may submit a written requisition to
propose resolution(s) at the next annual general

meeting.

The written requisition or notice given by the

requisitionist(s) must

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

state the resolution(s) with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the shareholders’

meeting;

be signed by the requisitionist(s);

specify the full name and address of the
requisitionist(s), as they appear in the Company's

share register of shareholders;

specify the class and number of shares which are
beneficially owned by the requisitionist(s) on the

date of such written requisition or notice; and

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEEBRE

B AR ()

ERRARRHES

() BEEAEREAG FREAAFES
2R BRARE 2 RRBIMAZ DR
EERHH -

(i) ERRASRILEZZNEFNOT

@) BEARAHEBRFBEASDR+
DZ—HRRAIERETDE R ﬁ
WERBITRRFINRGRZRE
b) HAETIRZTH 2 —HRREN
B R A DR 10048 AR A B IR R 7]
RREEER ET-ERREF
ARE HREBRER °

BE2ERATHBELNEEERIBH

ASSY

/!

(a) MPEFRZEAMAETERHLZ
RERIBRBERAE LREZS
7%

b) HESBRATEE
() BRESERALY 2R (—

IMARBRRERMAR)

(d) EREEERALTREBEEEXK
SEAMHBERES 2D IER K&
HAH: R

Annual Report 2018 F ik

31



32

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings (continued)

(i) The procedures for putting forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings are as follows: (continued)

The written requisition or notice given by the

requisitionist(s) must (continued)

(e) be deposited at the registered office of the Company
with a copy to the Company's head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit
3808, 38th Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for
the attention of the board of directors of the

Company or the company secretary of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings and other general meetings to communicate

with them and encourage their participation.

In addition, the Company also communicates to its
shareholders through interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars. All such reports,
announcements and circulars can also be accessed via the
Company's website (http://www.ncgrp.com.hk) and the

website of the Stock Exchange.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there was no change
in the Company’s constitutional documents, and these
documents are available on the websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

This report provides an update of the environmental, social

and governance (“ESG") of the Group during the year ended

31 March 2018 and is prepared in accordance with the ESG

Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

Al.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Emissions

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
cruise ship charter services, property investments and
securities trading. The operations of the Group do not
involve any production process, hence there is no
obvious exhaust emissions. Greenhouse gas emissions
from the Group are associated with electricity, company

vehicles and air travel.

The following table sets out the emissions of carbon
dioxide from electricity, company vehicles and air travel

during the Year.

Total volume emitted

CO: emissions

R HEREGRE

][

5l
AHEREEHEASENERE LB NER
(IRE @ kBARDRBE-_FT—\F=
AZ+—HLEFENEFREHN  ENREL
MRAUME -+ 2 CGRR - HEREAR
EEIDMRER -

A IRIE

Al. BER W
AEEFEREREBRAERE Y
ERBRBLBEE - AEE I CEER
WA RATA A EBIR - B LI AT
PREERE RN - AL 2B EREHEWN
THEES  AREFHEMEERER -

TRIMAFEERBES  RAIEFH R
finZe 2= iR B = EALBRBER -

Intensity of emission

CO: emissions

BHHRE BEREE
— S bR —EbEBEN
Electricity B 5 136.61 tonnes 0.16 tonnes (per square meter
136.6 1M1 of floor area)
0.16W8 (B ¥ 7 KIEHETE)
Company vehicles NIRRT 9.27 tonnes 3.09 tonnes (per vehicle)
9.27Iif 3.09W (B8 /78)
Air travel fin z= Z ik 14.43 tonnes 2.06 tonnes (per traveller)
14.430 2.06ME (FRIKE)
To reduce the impact from indirect greenhouse gas RBLEERERBHERITE K&
emissions, telephone conference is encouraged to avoid EoBETERGRAB R TLENR
unnecessary business travels. BEIK -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HEREEGRE

Al.

A2.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Emissions (continued)

The small amount of hazardous waste generated from
the Company’s office activities, such as toner cartridges,
is collected by qualified organizations for environmentally
friendly disposal. Non-hazardous waste includes waste
papers of approximately 2.66 tonnes which are collected
by specialized recycling company on a regular basis for

effective recycling.

Due to the Company's business nature, the Group was
not aware of any non-compliance of laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.

Use of Resources

Electricity consumption

The total electricity consumption of the Group came
directly from the lightings, air-conditioners, computers
and other office equipment. During the Year, electricity
consumption by the Group was 243,856 kWh which was
approximately 288.09 kWh per square meter of floor
area. The Group advocates employees to switch off idle
lightings, computers, office equipment and air-
conditioning systems when they are not in use. In
addition, the Group has adopted energy saving practices

in its office building.

Fuel consumption

The Group owns three vehicles for business uses. Fuel
consumption by the company vehicles during the Year
was 4,014 litres of petrol which was approximately 1,338
litres per vehicle. Regular maintenance on the Group's
vehicles is carried out to ensure a high fuel efficiency to

reduce emissions.
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A2.

A3.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Use of Resources (continued)

Water consumption

Water consumption of the Group is entirely generated
from domestic usage in the office building. However, the
head office in Hong Kong has no water consumption
recorded as the water consumption charges are included
in the building management fee so that the water bills
will not be calculated separately. Water saving notices
were posted in pantry to promote water conservation and
usage awareness. Since the main source of waste water
came from domestic use, the overall level of water

pollution was relatively low.

Paper consumption

The Group consumed 0.83 tonnes of papers during the
Year which was approximately 0.04 tonnes per employee.
In addition, the Company also introduced electronic
means of corporate communications to shareholders.
Shareholders are encouraged to receive corporate
communication documents by using electronic means
through the Company's website so as to reduce the

paper consumption.

The Group, as a non-consumer goods manufacturer, does
not consume any packaging materials in its principal

business.

The Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to building a sustainable
corporate culture and a green office environment by
saving energy and reducing waste. The concept of

"o noou

“Reduce”, "Reuse”, “Recycle” and “Replace” are strongly
promoted within the Group. By all means, the Group is
striving to protect the environment as a corporate social

responsibility.
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A3.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HEREEGRE

A3.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

The Environmental and Natural Resources
(continued)

In order to reduce ecological footprint, employees are
encouraged to make double-sided printing and copying,
and reuse items like envelopes. Recycling bins are set up
in the office to promote recycling and reusing paper. The
use of digital copies is promoted in the office to save
papers and to recycle envelopes that are used for issuing
internal documents and letters. The Group also uses
durable items instead of one-off disposable items by

replacing paper cups with mugs/glasses.

SOCIAL

. Employment

Employees are regarded as valuable assets and core
competitive advantage of the Group. Policies and
regulations principally adopted by the Group in respect of
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare have

been clearly stated in the employee handbook.

Compensation and dismissal

The Group offers competitive remuneration and benefits
to attract and retain the talents. The remuneration of
each employee will be determined with reference to a
number of factors including educational background,
experience, job duties, professional skills and technical
capabilities, as well as salary level for similar job positions
in the industry. An employee may be dismissed in case
of serious or persistent beaches of discipline or convicted

of a criminal offence.
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B2.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL (continued)

. Employment (continued)

Recruitment and promotion

The Group treats all employees equally. Their
employment, remuneration and promotion will not be
affected by their social identities such as ethnicity, race,
nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation,
marital status, pregnancy, disability and political beliefs.
The level of compensation of our employees is reviewed
annually in an annual appraisal on their performance
basis, during which process each employee is given equal

opportunity for promotion.

Working hours, benefits and welfare

The Group determines working hours and rest period for
employees in line with Employment Ordinance of Hong
Kong and employment contracts with employees. In
addition to statutory holidays, employees are also entitled
to other holidays including paid annual leave, sick leave,
marriage and compassionate leave, maternity leave,

paternity leave and compensation leave.

Benefits plans maintained by the Group include
mandatory provident fund scheme, medical insurance,
group life insurance and discretionary bonuses. Eligible
employees are rewarded through the Group’s share
option schemes and have the opportunity to acquire
shares of the Company through these schemes.

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing employees a safe,
healthy and hygienic working environment. The following
sets out the practices adopted by the Group in relation to

workplace:

«  Office employees are assigned with individual work
stations. Office are properly lit and ventilated, kept
clean and tidy with ample space between work

stations;
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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B2.

B3.

B4.

SOCIAL (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)

«  Office furniture and fittings are well maintained and
replaced where necessary;

«  Smoking in workplace is strictly prohibited;

«  Cleaning of air-conditioning systems and disinfection
treatment of carpets are carried out regularly;

«  Air defender and purifiers are equipped to protect
environment with antibacterial efficacy and to,
remove air-suspended dust and odour; and

¢ Security measures are in place at our offices to
restrict entry and exit only to staff and permitted

visitors.

During the Year, there have been no work-related injuries

or fatalities.

Development and Training

The Group acknowledges the importance of training for
the development of the employees as well as the Group.
The Group encourages and supports employees in
personal and professional training, through seminars,
workshops as well as reimbursement for external training
courses to enhance their competencies in performing

their jobs effectively and efficiently.

Labour Standards

The Group complies with all relevant laws and regulations
and the requirements of the governing authorities and
prohibits the employment of child and forced labour.
During the Year, all the Group’s employees are aged over
18 and no child labour has been employed. The Group
strives to create an environment of respect, integrity and

fairness for its employees.
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B5.

B6.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL (continued)

Supply Chain Management

As for the property investments and cruise ship charter
services, the Group has been providing quality services to
the customers, namely tenants and charterers, to
maintain long-term business relationships. We encourage

our tenants to minimize their resources consumption.

Regarding the cruise ship charter services, the Group
required the charterers to use fuel and lubrication oil to
the vessels to enable the main propulsion and auxiliary

engines to operate efficiently and without harmful effect.

The Group developed good relationships with its business
partners to achieve long-term goals. The management
maintained close communications and shared business
updates with them when appropriate. Meanwhile, we
continue to seek and gain support from our business
partners to cultivate safe working conditions and to
promote responsible environmental practices. During the
Year, there was no material and significant dispute

between the Group and its business partners.

Product Responsibility

The Group strives to adhere to applicable laws and
regulations with regard to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating products and
services provided in our business, and to maintain

effective communication channels for redress.

During the Year, there was no non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HEREEGRE

B7.

B8.

SOCIAL (continued)
Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance, the principles of which serve to
uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency,
responsibility and integrity in all aspect of the Group's
affairs. The Group has a zero-tolerance policy towards
behavior in association with bribery, corruption, extortion
fraud and money laundering in its business operations.
Employees should not offer, solicit or accept anything of
material value to or from his/her colleagues, customers,
suppliers or other business partners of the Company.

The Group encourages the reporting of suspected
business irregularities within the Group and provides
reporting channels specifically for this purpose. When
suspected wrongdoings, such as breach of duty, abuse of
power and receipts of bribes are identified, staff should
report to senior management for investigation and
verification, as well as other relevant regulators or to the
law enforcement authorities when necessary.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and
regulations in respect of anti-corruption, and no legal
cases against the Group in respect of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering has been recorded in the
Year under review.

Community Investment

The Group believes that community support is important
to the Group's success. The Group also encourages the
employees to actively participate in volunteering activities
in social services. During the Year, some employees
participated in free meal-boxes distribution activities to
the sick, the old and the needy in the old areas as
supported by a charitable organization and totally 176
volunteer hours were spent accordingly for the Year. We
will continue to maximize our social investments as
possible in order to create a more favorable environment
for our community and our businesses.
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The directors of the Company (the "Directors") present their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Company comprise investment
holding and securities trading. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries comprise the provision of cruise ship charter
services, property investments and securities trading. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's

principal activities during the year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 6 to 18 of this annual report. This

discussion forms part of this Directors' report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the

Group's financial position at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 70 to 200.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend

in respect of the year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages 201
and 202. This summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

There were no movements in the Company's share capital

and share options during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities

during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2018, the Company's reserves available for
distribution amounted to HK$755,335,000.

Under the laws of Bermuda, the amount standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company of
approximately HK$354,993,000 as at 31 March 2018 may be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company in the amount of
approximately HK$162,587,000 as at 31 March 2018 is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances as

prescribed by section 54 thereof.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the aggregate revenue attributable to
the five largest customers accounted for 59% of the Group's
total revenue, which included fair value gains on securities in
aggregate of HK$63,015,000 for the year. The aggregate
revenue attributable to the largest customer accounted for

45% of the Group's total revenue for the year.

No major suppliers were identified.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five

largest customers mentioned above.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

In accordance with the Company's bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2),
Mr. Yu Wai Man, Mr. Ho Yau Ming and Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves

for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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The Company has received from each of the three current
independent non-executive directors (namely Mr. Cheung
Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming)
an annual confirmation of independence and as at the date of

this report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES
(a) Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Wee Keat Chairman of the Company and the
Nomination Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee

Aged 41. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in January 2003 and was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company in April 2004. Mr. Ng
was re-designated from the chief executive officer to the
chairman of the Company in March 2012. Mr. Ng also
holds directorship in various members of the Group since
January 2003. Mr. Ng graduated from Indiana University
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Ng worked in a ship
management company where he was responsible for re-
engineering the company’s structure as well as ensuring
the daily operations of that company in a smooth and
efficient way. Mr. Ng is a director of Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited (“HWHL"), the immediate holding
company of New Century Investment Pacific Limited
("NCIPL"), which is the controlling shareholder of the
Company. In addition, Mr. Ng is a director of NCIPL. Mr.
Ng is a younger brother of Ms. Lilian Ng and an elder
brother of Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda. Mr. Ng is also a
cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. They are all executive
directors of the Company. Mr. Ng is a son of Mr. Ng
(Huang) Cheow Leng who is the settlor and the trustee
of a discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Mr. Ng did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan Deputy Chairman

Aged 51. Ms. Sio joined the Company as an executive
director in October 2002 and was appointed as the
deputy chairman of the Company in October 2004. Ms.
Sio also holds directorship in various members of the
Group since August 2000. Ms. Sio has over 23 years of
extensive management experience in various fields
including retailing, property investments, tourism and
entertainment. Ms. Sio is a director of HWHL, the
immediate holding company of NCIPL, which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition, Ms.
Sio is a director of NCIPL. Ms. Sio did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda Chief Operating Officer

Aged 40. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in June 2003 and was appointed as the chief
operating officer of the Company in October 2004. Ms.
Ng also holds directorship in various members of the
Group since November 2003. Ms. Ng brings to the Group
experience in the fields of real estate management,
human resource management and retail operations. Ms.
Ng graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree majoring in
Telecommunications and a minor in Computer Science
from Indiana University. Ms. Ng is a younger sister of Ms.
Lilian Ng and Mr. Ng Wee Keat. Ms. Ng is also a cousin
of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. They are all executive directors of
the Company. Ms. Ng is a daughter of Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng who is the settlor and the trustee of a
discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Ms. Ng did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.
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Aged 44. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in July 2002. Ms. Ng also holds directorship in
various members of the Group since September 2002.
Ms. Ng graduated from San Francisco State University
with a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration. Ms.
Ng has extensive experience in hotel management. Prior
to joining the Company, Ms. Ng was a finance and
operation director of a conglomerate with businesses in
tour industry and cruise liner management as well as
hotel and property management in Southeast Asia. Ms.
Ng is a director of NCIPL, which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company. Ms. Ng is the elder sister of
Mr. Ng Wee Keat and Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda. Ms. Ng is
also a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. They are all executive
directors of the Company. Ms. Ng is a daughter of Mr. Ng
(Huang) Cheow Leng who is the settlor and the trustee
of a discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Ms. Ng did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Aged 53. Ms. Chen joined the Company as an executive
director in May 2000. Ms. Chen also holds directorship in
various members of the Group since August 2000. Ms.
Chen holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree and is an
associate member of the Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants. Ms. Chen has over 30 years of
experience in the accounting field, including 4 years in
auditing. Ms. Chen is a cousin of Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms.
Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng. They are all
executive directors of the Company. Ms. Chen is a niece
of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng who is the settlor and
the trustee of a discretionary trust which holds the entire
interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate
holding company of the Company. Ms. Chen did not hold
any directorship in other listed public companies in the

last three years.

Mr. Yu Wai Man Member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee

Aged 53. Mr. Yu joined the Company in August 1997
and was appointed as an executive director of the
Company in October 2004. Mr. Yu also holds directorship
in various members of the Group since September 1997.
Mr. Yu is a fellow member of both of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 33
years of experience in the accounting field, including 3
years in external audit and 2 years in internal audit. Mr.
Yu has over 25 years of financial experience in
companies listed in Hong Kong and London. Mr. Yu did
not hold any directorship in other listed public companies

in the last three years.
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member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 53. Mr. Cheung joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in June 2012 and
was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee in September 2012.
Mr. Cheung is also the member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Cheung graduated from Edith Cowan
University of Australia and received his postgraduate
diploma of financial management from the University of
London. Since returning to Hong Kong in 1990, he has
been extending international opportunities for Chinese
large state-owned and privately-owned enterprises. Mr.
Cheung is a Practising Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
Certified Practising Accountant of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants and a Certified Tax
Adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr.
Cheung is the director of Global CPA (HK) Limited
(Representative of Integra International) and has
extensive experience in mergers and acquisitions and the
tax aspect. Mr. Cheung oversees the day-to-day running
of the finance function and is directly responsible for
financial reporting, corporate governance, tax and
corporate finance for multi-national companies including
state-owned enterprises and listed enterprises. Mr.
Cheung also has extensive international accounting
experience and has worked in CPA firms in the US and
Australia. Mr. Cheung has served as a member of the
Small and Medium Practitioners Committee, the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Professional Service Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council and International
Committee and a Certified Business Intermediary of the
International Business Brokers Association. Currently, Mr.
Cheung is a member of the Small and Medium
Practitioners Committee of CPA Australia. Mr. Cheung did
not hold any directorship in other listed public companies
in the last three years and any other positions with the
Company or other members of the Group.
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth Member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee

Aged 71. Mr. Kwan joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in April 2003. Mr.
Kwan is also the member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Applied
Science degree in Civil Engineering and a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree with Honours from the
University of Toronto and the University of Windsor
respectively. Mr. Kwan has 8 years of experience in the
accounting and tax auditing fields together with over 37
years of experience in the real estate business and
business agent. Mr. Kwan did not hold any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years and
any other positions with the Company or other members

of the Group.

Mr. Ho Yau Ming Member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee

Aged 67. Mr. Ho joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in April 2003. Mr. Ho is also the
member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Ho holds
a Master degree in Finance from the University of
Leicester in England. Mr. Ho had worked in the banking
industry for over 27 years in official and senior executive
positions including The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited and Dao Heng Bank Limited. Mr. Ho
did not hold any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years and any other positions

with the Company or other members of the Group.
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R
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, no Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors' fees are subject to shareholders' approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company's board of directors with reference to Directors'
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. Further details can be found in note 8 to the financial

statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
During the year ended 31 March 2018, a permitted indemnity

provision as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
was in force for indemnity liabilities incurred by the directors

of the Company to a third party.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director nor a connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, the holding
company of the Company, or any of the Company's

subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as

follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

EERBETRAERKRGOREEH
IRz s ]k

R-ZE-NF=ZA=1t—B ARAEEK
RETBABRARRHEEMEEER (F
ERBLSLBEG (EHEBEERG])
FEXVED) 2 B tn R BRI D R B RIEE 5
NG GPIEIS2ERABRBAERRFRREZ
Btz mloRe  REBEFETH Z
REMBAMGARRR MMz ERSMRE
LI

RARAEBRZHR

Number of ordinary shares held,

capacity and nature of interest

BEEERYE SO RESENE

Directly Through

beneficially controlled

Directors owned corporation
Bz EREEHES ZEHDE
Mr. Ng Wee Keat 30,030,000 308,992,000
BEREARE (note 2)
(PH3E2)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan 52,000,000 308,992,000
mEMZ LT (note 2)
(F&E2)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda 26,250,000 308,992,000
BEEELL (note 2)
(PH3E2)

Percentage of

the Company’s

Beneficiary issued share
of a trust Total capital
AR BRT
ERZERA B BRAZBEDL
3,455,753,691 3,794,775,691 65.65
(note 3)
(M =E3)
3,455,753,691 3,816,745,691 66.03
(note 3)
(P 7E3)
3,455,753,691 3,790,995,691 65.58
(note 3)
(P 7E3)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES (continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: (continued)

Directors

Ex

Ms. Lilian Ng

BFAEZT

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

BRiEELt

Mr. Yu Wai Man
REXEE
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Rz EE R AR (B)

el

RARBEBERZHR - (&)

Number of ordinary shares held,

capacity and nature of interest

BEEERYE - SORESEME

Directly
beneficially

owned

EREZER

26,250,000

8,400,000

3,360,000

Through
controlled

corporation

308,992,000
(note 2)
(PaE2)

Beneficiary

of a trust

BREZEHA

3,455,753,691
(note 3)
(Fi#3E3)

3,790,995,691

8,400,000

3,360,000

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

capital

HERDRERT

BRAEZBEDH

65.58

0.15

0.06
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND EENEETBERAERKR EAE
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING B zRBZIERE (8)
SHARES (continued)

Long positions in share options of the Company: RARREREZ FRE -

Number of share options

Directors directly beneficially owned
= BEEEREEZEREHAR
Mr. Ng Wee Keat =EELEE 66,000,000
Ms. Sio lon Kuan EhL o enn 56,000,000
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda EFEMZ T 53,000,000
Ms. Lilian Ng mAER L 53,000,000
Ms. Chen Ka Chee PR A& B 2 & 41,000,000
Mr. Yu Wai Man REXKE 44,000,000
313,000,000
Notes: (T
1. As at 31 March 2018, the total number of issued shares of the . RZE—NE=ZA=+—H KRQARZE
Company was 5,780,368,705. TR 1 42 81 A 5,780,368,705% °

2. 308,992,000 shares were held by New Century (Huang's) 2. 308,992,000t BT AL (ER) BEE
/L\\

Foundation Limited, a company limited by guarantee being a SERAAFE  ZRAA—RERER
charitable institution of public character of which Mr. Ng Wee Al WIEA—RARBRSHEE  SEELE
Keat, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian BHBEZT BEEHIXTRENELTAZ
Ng are members and members of its council of management. NEIZKERERBZESKE -

3. 3,455,753,691 shares were held by New Century Investment 3. 3,455,753,6911% Ik /5 ANew Century

Pacific Limited which is ultimately owned by Huang Group (BVI) Investment Pacific Limited#§ A + 3 BAHuang
Limited under a discretionary trust of which Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Group (BVI) Limited:& 8 & (ErE R LA ©
Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng are ZETREFRZREE NBEERERESE
the discretionary beneficiaries. MENALLT EBEREILEFNERL -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had registered
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any director of the Company, as at 31
March 2018, other than the interests of the directors of the
Company as disclosed above, the following interests of 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Shareholders Notes
S B EE
New Century Investment Pacific Limited 2,4
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited 2
Huang Group (BVI) Limited 2,3
Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng 3,4
ERB L

New Century (Huang's) Foundation Limited 4

FL (ER)BEESERAA
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BREXFHABEEEIN R_FT—-NF=H
=t—H ARAEFLERTRAEHRE
PAN A B 3 EL T fa] AR B O 18] 2 B ) S AR R X
P EERERE S LB ERIIEI526BF
FEZERIORA - RIRBIRET R Z R EM
BHGARRNA RIS HIAR

FERRRHEMATRARG REHE
Rz zEZERAR

RARBEMESEHAA R_T—/\F=AH
=t—H BREXAERBEARREZTZ#ER
SN AE AR E B 1T IRAS% A £ 2 T
s HRIE 8 5 R I B IR B B 336 1% E &2
AR DB BRFZ Em B

RARAEBRZHFR

Number of Percentage of the
ordinary Company'’s issued
shares held share capital
EERLFE BT

FEEBERHE BRAEZEDHL
3,455,753,691 59.78
3,455,753,691 59.78
3,455,753,691 59.78
4,138,237,691 71.59
308,992,000 5.35
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FHELEEERERQA

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

As at 31 March 2018, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 5,780,368,705.

Huang Group (BVI) Limited is the ultimate holding company of
New Century Investment Pacific Limited. Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited is the immediate holding company of New
Century Investment Pacific Limited. Accordingly, Huang Group
(BVI) Limited and Huang Worldwide Holding Limited were
deemed to be interested in a total of 3,455,753,691 shares.

Huang Group (BVI) Limited is held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng in his capacity as the settlor and the trustee of a

discretionary trust.

3,455,753,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited. 308,992,000 shares were held by New Century
(Huang's) Foundation Limited while 373,492,000 shares were
held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng. Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng is one of the members of New Century (Huang's)
Foundation Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng
was deemed to be interested in a total of 4,138,237,691
shares. New Century (Huang's) Foundation Limited is a company
limited by guarantee being a charitable institution of public

character.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, no person
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would be required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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FERRERHEMATRARG REHE
R zEER XA (&)

B &E -

RZE—NF=ZA=+—H KRQRIzZBE#
TR 4 $ 55,780,368, 7050 ©

Huang Group (BVI) Limited&New Century
Investment Pacific LimitedZ S 4 #ERR A ]
Huang Worldwide Holding LimitedZNew
Century Investment Pacific Limited,z B &%
g A 7] o Bt -+ Huang Group (BVI) Limited &
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited#%45 & A&
& #£3,455,753,691 IR IR {5 < & o

Huang Group (BVI) Limitedl = B3 B 55 4£ LA
—[EAEREFRIETAREBIEATOREE -

3,455,753,691 % i% 15 AANew Century
Investment Pacific Limited# & -
308,992,000 i3 sttt 40 (B K) A& &
©HMRAQAEE %373,492,0000% &5 B =
BB CERE ERBtERFHLE (FEX)
REESHERAGZER—(IKE - Bt
HEBEAWR BER A H£4,138237,691
BRI 2 B - St (BER)BEES AR
RAR—RERERRF - WERA—RAH
REWE -

REXPIBEEN R_F—-\F=A
=t—B #ERARARECTMLREHEZ AL
(ARREFFHZSTBRAERIN RAQE
ZEM SR P HEEREEF MR E K

e

XVEBEE2 R 370 B0 2 L E BRI A R

BzEEIORE  RBRBEBHFRAEGIIE
336G M ERLARRBMRFTE LM 2 #
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4
September 2012, ordinary resolutions were passed for the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option
Scheme”) and the termination of the share option scheme of
the Company adopted on 23 September 2002 (the “2002
Share Option Scheme”). Outstanding share options granted
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme prior to the termination
shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with
the 2002 Share Option Scheme. Further details of the 2012
Share Option Scheme and the 2002 Share Option Scheme

are disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.

(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme

The following table discloses the movements of the
outstanding share options granted under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme during the year:

Number of share options

BREHE
At Lapsed At
Name or category 1 April during 31 March
of participant 2017 the year 2018
R=B-t& REr RZB-N%F
SRELALER mA-H %% ZA=+-H

Directors

Bz

Mr. Ng Wee Keat
BRERE

45,000,000 - 45,000,000

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

BERLL

45,000,000 - 45,000,000

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
ERBIL

35,000,000 - 35,000,000
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BRESE
R-T——FHLAMBRITZARARRE
FREL TRAERCAEBURN—ER
Porgst @ (1 —F——FBREE)) - UK
FARRAR-ZZ-_FRA-_T=ARHZ
BRETS (T _FBRETE]) - R
B_TT_FBRESE RELEAREZ
TE_FRBREAERLMmERITEZBR
%%%ﬁﬁ@ﬁT?ﬁ@°ﬁ@_?—_¢
BREAES N _—_TT _FERENSZ
FEEE WBERPERRME24 -

@ —SZE=-FBERETE
TEREBERAFERN RE_ZTT_F
EIREERE MM RITEBRE
2a -

Date of Exercise Exercise

grant of period of price of
share options share options  share options*
BRE B BRE
REBH pEd i@
HK$ per share

gRETL

21-01-2011  21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100

“F--% ZF-—%-A-1+-R%

—AZf-H “E--Ff-A=1+H

21-01-2011 21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100
“F-—f ZF-—f-f-f-HE

—A=f-H “E-—-F-f-1H

21-01-2011  21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 02100
“T——% _E——%-f-+-BE

-A=+—H —E-—-5—f-+H
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FHELEEERERQA
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERE
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) BRESTE (8)
(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme (continued) () —ZEZT-_FERETE (&)
Number of share options
BREHR
At Lapsed At Date of Exercise Exercise
Name or category 1 April during 31 March grant of period of price of
of participant 2017 the year 2018  share options share options  share options*
RZB-t§ RER RZB-NE B BRE B
SEERESER mA—-H %% ZA=+-H RiBH T8 e
HK$ per share
gRAET
Directors (continued)
Bz (8)
Ms. Lilian Ng 35,000,000 - 35,000,000 21-01-2011  21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100
Lt e ZF—f ZE—F-AZf-RE
—A=f+-H “E--F-A=+H
Ms. Chen Ka Chee 25,000,000 - 25,000,000 21-01-2011  21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100
REfLt % “E-—%-fA-+-BE
—A=t-H “F--%-A-tH
Mr. Yu Wai Man 28,000,000 - 28,000,000 21-01-2011  21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 02100
REXEE % _T——%-A_1+-RHE

—A=t—-B  ZE--F-A=+H

213,000,000 - 213,000,000
Other employees
HitlER
In aggregate 39,040,000 - 39,040,000 21-01-2011  21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100
af ZF——% ZET-——%-fZ+-BE
—AZ+-H ZE--%-ACZ+H
Total 252,040,000 - 252,040,000
Ax
Ha
*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to * O EREZTEEATEEMERKBEITL
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other B8 AR R BIRAR 2 H A O B i
similar changes in the Company's share capital. F LA EE o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(b) 2012 Share Option Scheme

The following table discloses the movements of the

outstanding share options granted under the 2012 Share

Option Scheme during the year:

Name or category
of participant

SREMZAER

Directors

gz
Mr. Ng Wee Keat
AEREE

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

BERLL

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda

BEMLL

Ms. Lilian Ng
BRERL

Ms. Chen Ka Chee
BRETL

Mr. Yu Wai Man
REXEE

Annual Report 2018 #£3§

Number of share options

BREHE
At Lapsed At
1 April during 31 March
2017  the year 2018
R-B-t& RER RZF-NF
A—-BH %% ZR=t-8
21,000,000 - 21,000,000
11,000,000 - 11,000,000
18,000,000 - 18,000,000
18,000,000 - 18,000,000
16,000,000 - 16,000,000
16,000,000 - 16,000,000
100,000,000 - 100,000,000

FHELEEERERQA

BRESE (&)

(b) =B -——FBRETE
TERBEERAFER  RE-_FT——F
BRET RO MERITEZBREZ

#ah
5

Date of

grant of
share options
Bk
REBH

03-09-2013
—T-=F

NR=RH

03-09-2013
“E-=F

NA=H

03-09-2013
“E-=%
NA=H

03-09-2013
“2-=F

nA=H

03-09-2013
“E-=F
NAZH

03-09-2013
“E-=%
NA=H

Exercise
period of
share options
BRE
T

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-ZFNAZHEZ
“E-=FNACH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-=FNAZHE
“E--FENACH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-=fHLAZHZ
“E-=FNAZH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-=ZFNA=ZHE
“Z-=FNACH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-=FHA=HZ
“E-ZFNACH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-ZFNAZHZ
“E-=FNAZH

Exercise
price of
share options*
BERE
fTREE"

HK$ per share
BRET

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532
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FHELEEERERQA

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(b) 2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Number of share options

BREXR
At Lapsed At

Name or category 1 April during 31 March
of participant 2017 the year 2018

RZB-t§ RER RZB-N%F
SREMAHES mA-H %% ZR=t-H
Other employees
HftfES
In aggregate 34,600,000 - 34,600,000
aft
Total 134,600,000 - 134,600,000
At

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company's share capital.

As at 31 March 2018, the Company had 386,640,000 share
options outstanding under the Company’s share option
schemes. Should they be fully exercised, the Company will
receive additional share capital of HK$967,000 and share
premium of HK$95,598,000 (before issue expenses). The fair
value of these unexercised options measured in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy (note 2.4 to the financial
statements) amounted to HK$23,015,000 as at grant date.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

BRERTS (F)
(b) ZE-—FBERES (B

Date of Exercise Exercise

grant of period of price of

share options share options  share options*

BRE IR IR BRE

REAH TS i@

HK$ per share

RAET

03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
—B-=F “E-ZHNAZRE
NAZHR ZTZ=FNAZH

* BRI TEET AR RETA
B RAAAREZAMELBHE
F oA -

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—0 BEAQFE
f% #E 5T &) - A QA 5386,640,00017 B % 1
MARITHE - WEBHITEZEEBRE A4
B #5 & R0 8% R SR A967,0000% T & A% 15 i
895,598,0008 7T (RINFRETTHRIZ) o R
LHE ZEHRTEZERERBERAEER
EEHBR (MBREMF24) 22 A FE
18 /423,015,000 7T °
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the
Directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the

Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares were held by the

public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditor will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Wee Keat

Chairman

Hong Kong
28 June 2018
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FHELEEERERQA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB ER &
Ernst & Young LZXERTEI SR Tel EEE: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower EBDIRAEEIS Fax {§E: +852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue hiEKE2218 ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

EY ::

To the shareholders of
New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Century Group Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 200, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
I RBETR &

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided

in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

consolidated financial statements.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RET R &

RRETEE ()

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BRESBR BEMHBFTNAEERARETBR
Estimation of fair value of investment properties
REWMEN R FEEMET

As at 31 March 2018, investment properties
measured at fair value amounted to approximately
HK$676,424,000, which represented 35% of the
total assets, with the corresponding net fair value
gains recognised in profit or loss of approximately
HK$35,634,000. The valuation process is inherently
subjective, and dependent on a number of significant
unobservable inputs, such as the market price per
square foot, market rent per square foot and
capitalisation rate. The Group engaged external
valuers to perform the valuation for the investment
properties.
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The accounting policies and disclosures are included
in notes 2.4, 3 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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We considered the competence, capability and
objectivity of the valuation experts engaged by the
Group. We also obtained an understanding of the
work of the valuation experts. In addition, we
evaluated the appropriateness of the work performed
by the valuation experts. This included assessing the
relevance, completeness and accuracy of the data
used as inputs for the valuation by comparing to
market data if available, and assessing the relevance
and reasonableness of the major assumptions and
methodologies adopted in the valuation. We also
involved our internal valuation experts to assist us in
evaluating the assumptions and methodologies for
the valuation of the investment properties held by the
Group.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
I RBETR &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FHLEBEEARDLA

RRETEHE(H)

Key audit matters

CE RS

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

RMWEFNMEE@ARETEE

Estimation of fair value of cruise ships

BEwm D FEEMGE

As at 31 March 2018, cruise ships measured at fair
value and included in property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately HK$262,860,000, with
the corresponding revaluation deficit of approximately
HK$78,000 and HK$11,011,000 recognised in profit
or loss and other comprehensive income respectively
for the year ended 31 March 2018. The valuation
process is inherently subjective, and dependent on a
number of estimates, such as the market price per
unit, rate of newness and market discount rate. The
Group engaged an external valuer to perform the
valuation for the cruise ships.
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The accounting policies and disclosures are included

in notes 2.4, 3 and 12 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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We evaluated the competence, capability and
objectivity of the valuation expert engaged by the
Group. We also obtained an understanding of the
work of the valuation expert. In addition, we evaluated
the appropriateness of the work performed by the
valuation expert. This included assessing the
relevance, completeness and accuracy of the data
used as inputs for the valuation, and assessing the
relevance and reasonableness of the major
assumptions and methodologies adopted in the
valuation by making enquiries to the valuation expert.
We also involved our internal valuation experts to
assist us in evaluating the major assumptions and
methodologies of the valuation of cruise ships held by
the Group, which included performing independent
market research.
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In addition, we performed physical inspection of the
cruise ships to assess whether they are in good
condition.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RET R &

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing

the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

« lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RET R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on

our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor's report is Chan Sai Yu.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central

Hong Kong

28 June 2018
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
HREHEEmER

Year ended 31 March 2018
HE T ) \FZA=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FE T FET
REVENUE PN 5 202,055 182,616
Cost of services provided Pt 42 4 AR 75 5K AR (24,951) (29,169)
Gross profit EH 177,104 153,447
Other income and gains H A R s 5 3,351 1,121
Administrative expenses THRAX (25,904) (25,426)
Foreign exchange differences, net PR =% FF 9,237 (1,514)
Deficit on revaluation of By v EHBAL
cruise ships, net R 12 (78) (27,201)
Fair value gains on investment REMEZ NTEE
properties, net Was - FE 13 35,634 6,600
Finance costs BE KA 7 (725) (796)
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary B ARNERE = (242)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B B & R 6 198,619 105,989
Income tax expense ST E-4::! 9 (2,107) (622)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 196,512 105,367
Attributable to: AN AL &G
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIE R =N 148,611 76,482
Non-controlling interests FEPRIHE 47,901 28,885
196,512 105,367
EARNINGS PER SHARE EAREER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO RERFE A
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EiEEREF
OF THE COMPANY 11
Basic BN HK2.57 centsi&fll  HK1.32 cents/& 1l
Diluted 5y HK2.57 centsi&fll  HK1.32 cents/& 1l

Annual Report 2018 #£3§



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(LOSS)

Other comprehensive income/
(loss) to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences:

Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

Reclassification adjustment for the
dissolution of a foreign operation

Net other comprehensive income/
(loss) to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods

Other comprehensive income/
(loss) not to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:

Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation
of a cruise ship

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

REEBER

Hip 2wk~
(B#])

IR RS E# 0 4R
ERGMEMEE
Wzt (&8) -

PE 5L E R

BEBIMELE R
EEWELZR
BRBURSME E X
EMOBERE

LA 1% AT % 3 0 1R
EEEMEMEE
W, (F1R) %

iR HIE T e EF 0 8
ERmMEMEE
Wz (&518) -

BmEGRH
(B4b)

FEEHM2ERE

(B#E) - MERBA

REE2ERE
]

AT AL -
ARBHEEA
FEIE R R

Note
B 5

FEEZEWER

Year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_ZTZ-N\F=ZA=+—HIL&FE

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHET
196,512 105,367
26,800 (10,855)
- 242
26,800 (10,613)
(11,011) 9,725
15,789 (888)
212,301 104,479
162,177 74,325
50,124 30,154
212,301 104,479
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HFEMBRAE
31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Available-for-sale investment

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Accruals, other payables and
deposits received

Tax payable

Due to a related company

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

Annual Report 2018 #£3§

Notes
B 5
ERBEE
Y BE N EE 12
"EYE 13
AHEE ZIRE
JEMEBEELTE
REBEE
FEUE B ER K 15
PTEEmMITA 20
BRFIE ek
H 1t JE U BR 3K 16
BAFEBEA
B RERE 17
A Uk [0 7 18
RekBREEEY 18
MEEEHER
REBAE
MEesmIE 20
FTEIRITR
E MRk 21
JEST B - HApELS
EREERZE 19
FE G T IR
&1 BB A B FRIA 30(b)
mEAERRE
REBEEFHE
BWEEBME
=R

FHELEEERERQA

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THxT FHET
283,438 277,317
676,424 630,860
780 780
960,642 908,957
32,829 6,054
107 159
8,616 4 606
139,154 422,001
10 2,843
793,767 389,363
974,483 825,026
3,291 839
1,574 2,245
23,444 39,436
804 -

9 —
29,122 42,520
945,361 782,506
1,906,003 1,691,463




New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
HZEMBRAR(E)

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FHE T FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and FHERITR
other borrowings H Ath & 3K 21 21,863 21,138
Loan advanced from a REBHRBARZ
non-controlling shareholder of FEEAR AR R
the Group's subsidiary BN Z2ER 30(d) 171,823 171,823
Deposits received Bz e 19 3,999 3,123
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE 22 3,749 3011
Total non-current liabilities FErREBAEEETE 201,434 199,195
Net assets BEFR 1,704,569 1,492,268
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners EXNTERA
of the Company EiEREzs
Issued capital BEITRA 23 14,451 14,451
Reserves 1 25 1,622,219 1,460,042
1,636,670 1,474,493
Non-controlling interests FERER 67,899 17,775
Total equity AT 1,704,569 1,492,268
Ng Wee Keat Sio lon Kuan
=HEH £ ki
Chairman Deputy Chairman
*+E ey
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FHLEBEEBEERLQA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEEREEIRE

Year ended 31 March 2018

HE T ) \FZA=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARENEE
Share Share Asset  Exchange Non-
Issued  premium option Contributed revaluation ~ translation ~ Retained controlling Total
capital ~ account reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
& Rt BRE BY HEEf: i) e 2R B

Bx  RER 1 BR & & Gyl ait i a8
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKS00  HKS0OO  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKSO000  HKS000  HK$000
TEn  TRR  TET  TER TR Tz TET  TER  TEn  TiEn

At 1 Apil 2017 RZE-+EMA-A 14451 354993 23015 162,587 6607  (13476) 926316 1474493 17,775 1492268
Profit for the year RER & - - - - - - 148611 148611 47901 196512
Other comprehensive REREMRE

income/(loss) for the year: W2,/ (B5%8) :
Exchange differences releted  BEEIMEE XS

to foreign operations WEXZS - - - - - 20173 - 20173 6,627 26,800
Deficit on revaluation BREf
of a cruise ship 5 - - - - (6,607) - - (6,607) (4408 (11,011

Total comprehensive TEERE
income for the year gattad = = = = (6,607) 20,173 148,611 162,177 50,124 212,301
At 31 March 2018 RIB-N\F
ZA=1+-H 14,451 354,993* 23,015%  162,587* =* 6,697* 1,074,927* 1,636,670 67,899 1,704,569
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * W E#EBERBENGEAT B RERF L
HK$1,622,219,000 (2017: HK$1,460,042,000) in the A F1#1,622,219,0008 L (T —+F =
consolidated statement of financial position. 1,460,042,000/ 7T) °
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

GREEREERT(E)
Year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_ZTZ-N\F=ZA=+—HIL&FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

YNGEZ:IN
Share Share Asset  Exchange Non-
Issued ~ premium option  Contrbuted  revaluation  translation  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BEf Rt Ehe B EEER B R HER e
BE BER B B8 G e -l At &R o
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK§'000
TAL TAL AL T TEL TEL TAL TEL AL T
At 1 April 2016 RZE-RERA-H 14,451 354,993 23,015 162,587 172 (5484) 849,834 1,400,168 27621 1,427,789
Profit for the year TFEET - - - - - - 76482 76482 28885 105367
Other comprehensive REREMRE
income/(loss) for the year: 4t/ (B518) -
Exchange differences related  ABIMEL X7
to foreign operations MERES - - - - - (7992) - (7992)  (2621)  (10613)
Surplus on revaluation BHER
of a cruise ship 2% - - - - 5835 - - 5835 3,890 9,725
Total comprehensive rEERE
income for the year grt - - - - 5835 (7992) 76482 74325 30154 104479
Dividends paid to BERFERRRE
non-controlling shareholders 2 & - - - - - - - - (40,000)  (40,000)
AL 31 March 2017 R-F—tF
=A=t+-H 14451 354993 23015 162,587 6607 (13476) 926316 1474493 17775 1492268
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GZERERER
Year ended 31 March 2018
HE T ) \FZA=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Bank interest income
Dividend income
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation
Fair value gains on equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
— held for trading, net
Fair value losses/(gains) on derivative
financial instruments, net
Fair value gains on investment
properties, net

Deficit on revaluation of cruise ships, net

Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables
Decrease in equity investments

at fair value through profit or loss
Increase in an amount due to

a related company
(Decrease)/increase in accruals,

other payables and deposits received

Cash generated from operations
Interest received

Interest paid

Hong Kong tax refunded, net
Overseas tax refunded
Dividends received

Net cash flows from operating activities

Annual Report 2018 #£3§

Notes

P &£

LETHoRE
hE
BR % A A
BT SEZAE
BE KA
RITFI B A
REMA
HENE  BE K
SEEENER 6
nE 12
BRATEBEFMABER
MRERE 2 N TFEE
ham-HEEE 38 5
TESBMIAZAFEE
B/ (&)  FE 5, 20
BREMEZATFER
Wz 3 E 13
B EHEL  F8 12
Ry BATNER

BB SRRz () /WD
AR ZE LA
Rz (4B m) /B
BRVFEERFARR
MRS E 2B D

FE BA B 2 R FUOR

B

fEa TR - HMEERH LR
ElEEz OfL) /i

KEEEXB AT
EWH B

ERME
ROBBERE  FE
REIMIEIR
B R

5}5 Q & M/é@bzfﬂémuiﬁ?%g

FHELEEERERQA

2018 2017
—E-N\§ —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TET
198,619 105,989
725 796
(3,262) (1,093)
(13,519) (16,938)
144 -
26,025 30,165
(63,015) (39,253)
2,504 (768)
(35,634) (6,600)
78 27,201

= 242
112,665 99,741
(26,504) 57,439
(3,678) 288
345,862 1,469
9 —
(17,392) 1,380
410,962 160,317
3,262 1,093
(725) (796)
2,164 -
4 13
13,519 16,938
429,186 177,565




New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Increase in bank deposits

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

New bank loans and
other borrowings

Repayment of bank loans and
other borrowings

Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents

at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

Note
B &E

RALEEH I HEREFH

REZH2ES
hE
BEVE BER
FEEE 12
HENE  BE KX
BB E MFEHIE
RITFHR LM

AREEEB REREFE

BETBHZES
hE

FERITERR
HAER

BERITERR
HAER
BRFEERERR
ZIRE

ﬁﬁﬁc%ﬂﬁ@%ﬁzfﬁimgéﬁ

ﬁ%&ﬁégfwz
#gm/ ()2

m&&mza%&
e EEY

NEEXZEH I FE

REERZRER
RESEN

GRS RERE)
Year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_ZTZ-N\F=ZA=+—HIL&FE

2018 2017
—E-N\§ “E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FATL
429,186 177,565
(25,442) (43,112)
260 -
(91,501) (120,515)
(116,683) (163,627)
80,697 100,000
(82,300) (102,377)
= (40,000)
(1,603) (42,377)
310,900 (28,439)
230,769 260,140
2,003 (932)
543,672 230,769
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

GZEREREFR(E)
Year ended 31 March 2018
HE T ) \FZA=+—HIFE

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of less than
three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement of
cash flows

Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of more than
three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement of
financial position
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Note
P &%

ReRkBEeSENL

BEON
ReRkRTERF 18
BARRTENAR

TR=MAZ

EEREHER

HERERERA
Pt R & &
ReEEY

BAKRTENAR
BBE=AZ
BERTHER

BRRBRREA
Pt R & B
Ry EEY 18

FHELEEERERQA

2018 2017
—E-N\§ “E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TET
46,871 46,581
496,801 184,188
543,672 230,769
250,095 158,594
793,767 389,363




New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The principal activities of the Company comprise
investment holding and securities trading. During the
year, the Group was principally engaged in the provision
of cruise ship charter services, property investments and

securities trading.

The Company is a subsidiary of New Century Investment
Pacific Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. New Century Investment Pacific Limited is
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. In the opinion of the directors, Huang
Group (BVI) Limited, which is beneficially and wholly
owned by a discretionary trust, is the ultimate holding

company of the Company.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

ARAREEER

it SEEEER AT AR BREET
MLz BRAR - RAR ZEMHE
iz i ’*Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ©

ARRZEIEEBEREREZERNES
BEE -RAFER AEBEZETEXEH
REEBREERY  WERRERES

oz
BE-

A7) ANew Century Investment Pacific
Limited (R R B RE X B S EMA L2 2
) Z M B2 F - New Century
Investment Pacific Limited/5Huang
Group (BVI) Limited (R B E Z B S5+
MRz zRE) cHEZEMBAF -
REZZER B H2EGHERR
2 &5 27 Huang Group (BVI) Limited
TIRRA)Z EER AT ©
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RPEIREEEHR (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries MEATNESR
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RABFEMBRARZFBOT :
follows:
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Issued equity attributable Principal
Name operations share capital to the Group activities
EMARL/ rEEER
£ R BETRE ERZEM TEXH
2018 2017
“E-NE CTLF
Century Rich Investments Limited British Virgin US$1 60 60 Securities
Islands (“BVI")/ IEH trading
EERNAS BHEE
((RBRES])/
Hong Kong
)
Kingston Maritime Limited BVI/ US$1 60 60 Cruise ship
EBRLEE/ E investment
International water Bk &
NS
Jackston Maritime Limited BVI/ US$10,000 60 60 Cruise ship
ERRLEE/ 10,000% 7T investment
International water BHrE
Y
Queenston Maritime Limited BVI/ US$10,000 60 60 Cruise ship
RERNBE/ 10,000% 7T investment
International water B E
YN
Gaintech Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
MERERRAR 3 2B investment
NERE
New Century Properties Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
Investments Limited B 28T investment
MU ENEREBRAA NERE
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/

Name operations
ERAL/

1 REmy
Senic Investment Limited Hong Kong
BNEREFRAR BA
Wise Century Investments Limited Hong Kong
EMREERAR B
New Century Group HK Investment Singapore
Pte. Ltd. g

All of the above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held

by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

1. RAREEHESN (&)

MEDRNER (&)
ARFEEMBATZHENT ¢ (&)

Percentage of

Issued equity attributable Principal
share capital to the Group activities
rEEEL
BETRE BRZEMN TEXH
2018 2017
“E-N\F ZT—+F
HK$2 100 100 Property
28T investment
NERE
HK$1 100 100 Property
18T investment
NERE
S§1 100 100 Property
17T investment
NERE

AEMAEEXZMBRARHEHARREE
SR

ERFANZARRMBARNEERR
HASBEARFEEEBERATELHEAR
SHFEETRHLD - EFTRR - W5
HEMHBRARZHE  RESERNT
£ o
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 IRBEXE

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for cruise ships,
investment properties, equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand

except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2018. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability

to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,

including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the

date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as

an equity transaction.
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B ¥R R MR
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities:
Clarification of the
Scope of HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 12
included in Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

None of the above amendments to HKFRSs has had a
significant financial effect on these financial statements.
Disclosure has been made in note 31 to the financial
statements upon the adoption of amendments to HKAS
7, which require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,
in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts'

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers’

Leases?
Insurance Contracts®

Plan Amendments, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Long-term Interest in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 28!

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 232

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 3R R P EE
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FHELEEERERQA

23 BMEMKERZERBYH

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available
for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018. The Group will not
restate comparative information and will recognise any
transition adjustments against the opening balance of
equity at 1 April 2018. During the year, the Group has
performed a detailed assessment of the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 9. The expected impacts relate to the
classification and measurement and the impairment
requirements and are summarised as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 9
will have an impact on the classification and
measurement of its available-for-sale financial assets.
It expects to measure the available-for-sale financial
assets currently measured at cost less impairment at
fair value. Equity investments currently held as
available for sale will be measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the
investments are intended to be held for the
foreseeable future and the Group expects to apply
the option to present fair value changes in other
comprehensive income. Gains and losses recorded
in other comprehensive income for the equity
investments cannot be recycled to profit or loss
when the investments are derecognised.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 ERGENKRER S EEBIE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued) REAED ()

(b) Impairment (b) RE1E

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt
instruments recorded at amortised cost or at fair
value through other comprehensive income, lease
receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for at fair
value through profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to be
recorded based on an expected credit loss model
either on a twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis.
The Group will apply the simplified approach and
record lifetime expected losses that are estimated
based on the present values of all cash shortfalls
over the remaining life of all of its trade receivables.
Furthermore, the Group will apply the general
approach and record twelve-month expected credit
losses that are estimated based on the possible
default events on its other receivables within the

next twelve months.

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate
the application of the expected loss model of HKFRS
9 will result in earlier provision of credit losses which
are not yet incurred in relation to the Group's
financial assets measured at amortised costs and
other items that subject to the impairment
provisions upon the initial application of the

standard.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FHELEEERERQA

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS
15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. Either a full retrospective
application or a modified retrospective adoption is
required on the initial application of the standard. In June
2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to
address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual
property, and transition. The amendments are also
intended to help ensure a more consistent application
when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and
complexity of applying the standard. The Group plans to
adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 15 to
recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
at 1 April 2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply the
new requirements only to contracts that are not
completed before 1 April 2018. The Group expects that
the transitional adjustment to be made on 1 April 2018
upon initial adoption of HKFRS 15 will not be material.
The Group also expects the expected changes in
accounting policies will not have a material impact on the
Group's financial statements from 2018 onwards. During
the year, the Group has performed a detailed assessment
on the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 15. The new
standard is not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group's financial statements.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17
Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two
elective recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of
low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a
liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset).
The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently
increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability and
reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required
to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease
liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such
as change in the lease term and change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16
requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to
apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019.
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16
upon adoption and is considering whether it will choose
to take advantage of the practical expedients available
and which transition approach and reliefs will be adopted.
As disclosed in note 28(b) to the financial statements, at
31 March 2018, the Group had future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
aggregate of approximately HK$420,000 (2017:
HK$174,000). Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, certain
amounts included therein may need to be recognised as
new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. Further
analysis, however, will be needed to determine the
amount of new rights of use assets and lease liabilities to
be recognised, including, but not limited to, any amounts
relating to leases of low-value assets and short term
leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and
new leases entered into before the date of adoption.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative
financial instruments, cruise ships and equity investments
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 T ESHBEEE (8)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and
investment properties), the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to

which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued

asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued) BB (&)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (b) ZHREBARE AT EAEYE :

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the () ZERBNAEERR—%
same group; B 8

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of (i) " EREES—HEE(KEZS
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or —ERBNERA - MBAFK
fellow subsidiary of the other entity); B RZMEAF) @B E QA

EE-WNS

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of (i) ZBBMAEBEZHLIHRS
the same third party; ZHMEERA

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy " BERBEF-FTWNAEQA
and the other entity is an associate of the third TES—EBERBEZE=ZAHN
entity; = W/NS|

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan (v) ZERBERASEEHFELRE
for the benefit of employees of either the EENERENES RN
Group or an entity related to the Group; RE BB AR AETE

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by (i) ZEBXF@EMM 2 AT
a person identified in (a); PRl S RS

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) R@)(D)IBFTILH A THZE
influence over the entity or is a member of the BEEEATE _EE ZER®
key management personnel of the entity (or of (HEHRE) TEERAE
a parent of the entity); and WK E : &

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group which it ViDZEBERIEMBSE BN E M
is a part, provides key management personnel BB AR A KBS AR
services to the Group or to the parent of the WEARREBEFTEERAE
Group. R %5 -
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FHELEEERERQA

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives

and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the value
of property, plant and equipment are dealt with as
movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to the statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the statement of profit
or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the
asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained profits as a

movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 T ESHBEEE (8)

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis, with
the exception of motor vehicles which are calculated on
the reducing-balance basis, to write off the cost of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings in Hong Kong Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements 33%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% to 15%

Motor vehicles 20%

Cruise ships 6% to 25%

Drydocking costs represent major inspection and overhaul
costs and are included in cruise ships and depreciated to
reflect the consumption of benefits, which are to be
replaced or restored by the subsequent drydocking

generally every two to three years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year

end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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FHELEEERERQA

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting

period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of

profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of

profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 T ESHBEEE (8)

POLICIES (continued)
Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal
title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception
of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the statement
of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate

of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or

loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on

the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets

recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of

sale in the near term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value presented as other
income and gains and negative net changes in fair value
presented as finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policy set

out for "Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39

are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and gains in
the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for

receivables.
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FHLEBEBERLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in unlisted equity investments. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor

designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
to the statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments are reported as
interest income and dividend income, respectively and
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for

“Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 T ESHBEEE (8)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term
are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets, if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or

until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest
rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is

reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

«  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

«  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset; or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic

conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a

collective assessment of impairment.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate

computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account and
the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to

the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off
is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the

statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets

are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group

of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement

of profit or loss.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value
after impairment are recognised directly in other

comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to

which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 T ESHBEEE (8)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as

appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include other payables
and accruals, deposits received, interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, an amount due to a related company
and a loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder

of the Group's subsidiary.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance

costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit

or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle

the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value
is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in
fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the

statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part

of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,

which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

«  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

¢ in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

« when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

« in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or

assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Annual Report 2018 £3§

FHELEEERERQA

24 TEETBEME (F)

Frig®i (&)
BEEREEEZEASHEREREHE
BE - WHRETBAIEA RHERT
HEABEAANBOECHIBEEENHA
Bk o RERZBEERBBEAENSRE
HIRE T - WERTREA RHERT
w A EATA NS IEER B E E W E b
TR -

EEMAEERBENEERERNE
BEEEZHMA 2 BRERARE - BNK
EHRCHEREREFEZHE (R
BEED) FHHE -

WRRRBUMRAEEBEAETEREN
EMNAEAERHEENHEBEAG XA
AT &S - I Al AR HELERIHE
EMEEHRBAE  EXHEAEELE
EHBRERR B E — &R
MEEE TR EATEEBRENAE
MERM MELEEAIEEREER
AFERBRENAABERELERAR
ELXEHBAEER LNKEWERA - 2F
BEEGHENNAEERAE XA
RERZEENEEZRE -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

@

(b)

©

(d)

(e

®

cruise ship charter service income, on a time
proportion basis over the terms as set out in the

agreements governing such activities;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms;

realised fair value gains or losses on securities
trading, on a trade date basis, whilst unrealised fair
value gains or losses, on changes in fair value at the

end of the reporting period;

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net

carrying amount of the financial asset; and

fair value gains or losses on derivative financial
instruments, on changes in fair value at the end of

the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using

the binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that

period.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are

satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the

employee as measured at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the

previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings

per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group's
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to
the Group when the employee leaves employment prior
to the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the

rules of the MPF Scheme.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the

financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the

statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on retranslation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars

at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by
the Group. The Group's office premises located in Hong
Kong comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for administrative purposes. As these portions could be
sold separately, the Group accounts for the portion held
to earn rentals separately as investment properties.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Income tax

The Group is engaged in the cruise ship chartering
business and accordingly may be subject to income taxes
in different jurisdictions depending on the routes of the
cruise ships and the operations of the relevant
companies. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes worldwide, if
any. The Group does not recognise any liability for
income tax based on management's judgement that the
Group is not subject to income taxes of any of the
jurisdictions based on the existing routes of the cruise
ships and the operations of the relevant companies. In
addition, the Group has obtained indemnity letters from
charterers to confirm that all relevant tax exposure of the

Group's cruise ships would be borne by the charterers.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
and cruise ships

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market of similar leases and other contracts. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines the
amount within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.
In making its judgement, the Group considers information
from fair market value by reference to independent
valuations. This conclusion is supported by independent
professional appraisers who were engaged by the Group
during the year to perform valuations on the Group's
investment properties and cruise ships. As at 31 March
2018, the fair values of investment properties and cruise
ships amounted to HK$676,424,000 (2017:
HK$630,860,000) and HK$262,860,000 (2017:
HK$257,400,000), respectively, which were obtained by

reference to quoted second hand market prices.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The gross deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 March 2018 were
HK$4,186,000 (2017: HK$4,167,000). The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2018 was
HK$213,445,000 (2017: HK$242,144,000). Further
details are contained in note 22 to the financial

statements.

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

T EGE ARG ()

fhEt 2 FHABEE (&)
REYREL B2 2 FIEEIG

NFEEz2HERFAEURE R EA
BHRERMEP2HRE - WA= A H
Br - AEESTEABRZAFEEMR
BEEANET SR  NELFIER K&
Eg2REUHELXELATHEERR
HERESAEENAFENZIE AR
REBZEREMERBHEITHEZE
VEEMEMZE RZT-N\EF=H
=+—B REVERBHATEE
7B /676,424,000%8 0 (=T — 4 -
630,860,000/ JT) }262,860,000/% JT
— T — 4 257,400,000 ) + &
T2E_FHISRERSF -

AL BIH A B

HRTE R BIEEE M #ERRT
MIBEE - RIRH AT BB FE R B T
AREREA RSB EE -  EEEA
BRCELEHEEESER  BEER
AR5 °] B 3R R SR FE SR B s A1 2 R
IR LA B R R B 75 A & 3R BR 1 B K #
B-R-_ZT—N\F=ZA=+—8 ¥k
EHATEBEZEEHIAEERER
4,186,0008 L (ZF — + F -
4,167,0008 L) - R =T —N\F=A
E+—RB ABRBBTEEBZSER
213,445,000 T (ZF — £ F -
242,144,000 70) « #E — L FHBFHN
BTSRRI E22 ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their businesses and services

and has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the cruise ship charter services segment engages in
the provision of chartering services of cruise ships;

(b) the property investments segment invests in prime
office space and commercial shops for their rental
income potential; and

(c) the securities trading segment engages in the trading
of marketable securities for short-term investment

purposes.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted
profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's profit before tax
except that interest income, finance costs, loss on
dissolution of a subsidiary as well as corporate income

and expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, tax
recoverable and other unallocated corporate assets as

these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, a loan advanced from a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, amount due to a
related company, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated corporate liabilities as these liabilities

are managed on a group basis.

There were no intersegment sales and transfers during
the year (2017: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RZ 45 ZE R (8)

Cruise ship Property Securities
charter services investments trading Total
BRRERY NERE R5EE ait
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

“®-N\F ZFtF Z®-NF ZT-tF ZR-NF ZT-HF R-NF ZF LR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr TiEn TR BT TR TiEn TERx THL

Segment revenue:  AHKA :
Income from extemal - REHEEF

customers ZWA 106,390 104,824 21,635 20,833 74,030 56,959 202,055 182,616
Otherincomeand ~ EMMAR
gains Wz - - 29 28 - - 29 28

Total revenue and WA REH

other income WAA 106,390 104,824 21,664 20,861 74,030 56959 202,084 182,644
Segment results PREE 84,129 46,589 52,366 22,448 17,157 56,889 213,652 125,926
Reconciliation: 5
Interest income MM A 3,262 1,093
Unallocated income ~ RAERHA

and gains Rz 3,347 -
Loss on dissolution B &K EAA

of a subsidiary HMER - (242)
Coporate and other  BEREH

unallocated expenses KA EH X (20917)  (19992)
Finance costs BERK (725) (796)
Profit before tax BEAER 198,619 105,989
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, &

Cruise ship Property
charter services investments
BREERY NERE
2018 2017 2018 2017

Z§-N\E -—EF-+F ZB-\E -F{F
HK$000  HKSO0D ~ HKS000  HKS'000
Téx  TET  TER  TER

Segment assets PTHEE 277375 260285 677446 632,156
Reconciligtion: B
Corporate and other M E R E

unallocated assets ~ RAREE

Total assets ZEE
Segment liabilities A HEE 20,160 35,501 5,550 5,466
Reconciliation: 8E:

Corporate and other M E R E
unallocated liabilities £ & &

Total liabilities Bafk

Other segment EtnH

information: 3
Depreciation ik 24,951 29,169 = -
Farvalue gainson ~ WENEZ

investment LYEE

properties, net W 8 - - (35634) (6,600)
Deficit on revaluation & 7 &%

of cruise ships, net B4 FE 11,089 17476 = -

Fairvalue gainson ~ RAFEBEFA

equity investments  BEARER

at fair value through B2 AFEE

profit or loss, net W& FE - - = -
Fair value losses/  $i£4@TA

(gains) on derivative 2 ATEE

financial BB/

instruments, net (&) 58 - - - -
Capital expenditure* ~ BAF H* 23,303 43,057 - -
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant *

and equipment.
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Lo RER (&)

Securities
trading Total
B5EE &
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-\§f Tt ZB-\f ZT—(F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThAR THEL TER THL
163,557 427,658 1,118378 1,320,099
816,747 413,884
1,935,125 1,733,983
3,291 839 29,001 41,806
201,555 199,909
230,556 241,715
- - 24,951 29,169
- - (3,638)  (6600)
= - 11,089 17,476
(63015)  (39253)  (63015)  (39,253)
2,504 (768) 2,504 (768)

- 23,303 43,057

BEASHBRYE  BERREORE -
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FHELEEERERQA

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

(a) Revenue, other income and gains from
external customers

Hong Kong e
Southeast Asia except Hong Kong

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

Hong Kong e
Southeast Asia except Hong Kong

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes financial
instruments.

Information about a major customer

Revenue from a customer of the corresponding years
amounting to over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group is as follows:

B

Customer A!

! Revenue from the provision of cruise ship charter services

RE: (TEEER)

REZ(TREEB)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

4, BETHEN (&)

it E & ¥
(a) XEINREF KA -~ At
WA Je 4% 75
2018 2017
—E-N\E e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FE T
75,081 65,717
127,003 116,927
202,084 182,644

b At AE R AR P R B [ I8 A A
R o

(b) FEBEE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHBT
554,678 520,117
405,184 388,060
959,862 908,177

LFRAFERBEEERABEEMZR
BRER UTIArEFEeRIA-

FEEFER

REBFBFEERN  EREELKAT10%

NEMBERE ZHALT :
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
89,907 88,852

' REREBHHEERBHOEA
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R R aE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

Revenue represents cruise ship charter service income,

gross rental income from investment properties, fair value

gains/losses on equity investments at fair value through

profit or loss, fair value gains/losses on derivative

financial instruments and dividend income during the

year.

An analysis of revenue and other income and gains is as

follows:

Revenue

Cruise ship charter service income

Gross rental income from
investment properties

Fair value gains on equity
investments at fair value through
profit or loss — held for trading, net

Fair value gains/(losses) on derivative
financial instruments — transactions
not qualifying as hedges, net

Dividend income from equity
investments at fair value through

profit or loss — held for trading

Other income and gains
Bank interest income
Others
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L'ON
BmBERB KA
KEREWMEZ
He WA #E

BT EEF AR

FHELEEERERQA

WA~ Hfl AR s
BARAFEANZ BHRBEREBEA -
REREMEZRMSRARE  BAT
EE ABRROBREREZ AT EEK
#/ BB TESRIAZATEAENK
&/ BERREMA -

WAREMBA R W2z ofmT :

MBHERE 2 A FEE

Wat —#HEEE

TESMIAZRAFEE
W/ (BER)-THa

RN S

AR AR

R E 2 BB A

—REEE

HAb WA & W
RITALBHA
HAl

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

106,390 104,824

21,635 20,833

RER 63,015 39,253
HEE (2,504) 768
13,519 16,938

202,055 182,616

3,262 1,093

89 28

3,351 1,121
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FHELEEERERQA

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Depreciation

Auditor's remuneration

Employee benefit expense
(including directors'’
remuneration in note 8):

Wages and salaries

Pension scheme contributions

Total staff costs

Minimum lease payments
under operating leases

Foreign exchange
differences, net

Direct operating expenses
(including repairs and
maintenance) arising from
rental-earning investment
properties

Fair value gains on
investment properties, net

Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment

e

ZBUED B =

BERMAX
(BEMFszES
M) :
TERF®
BIREEHEIER

B ITRALEEE

KEHERE
kg

PE L ERR

R
ARBEE
BEMERN
BEEKLERX
(BRE#E
MERE)
REWMEZRAFEE
W B8
HEME - BE K
RIEREE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R EE

31 March 2018

—F-N\F=A=+-H

2018 2017

—E-N\#F —E—+F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M =E FHExT FAET
12 26,025 30,165
1,435 1,360

15,006 14,225

459 685

15,465 14,910

144 192

(9,237) 1,514

2,623 2,748

13 (35,634) (6,600)
144 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Interest on bank loans WITERZHE
Interest on securities margin BEREBELEP
account facilities BE 2 FE

8. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), section
383(1)(a), (b), (c¢) and (f) of the Hong Kong

FHELEEERERQA

7. WERAX
RMEKADTT
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
685 776
40 20
725 796

8. EENTANESHEENS

() EEM <
BEEBBERSARAR ([H
R EHEWAN(TETR
A1) - BB CREEBGI) £383(1)
@) * (b) * () R(N)IEA KA T] (H
BESNRER) RO E2HRE

Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies WAFEEEMEOT
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Fees we 396 396
Other emoluments: HAi Bl :
Salaries and allowances e KRR 6,524 6,501
Discretionary bonuses BIETEAL 1,098 849
Pension scheme contributions BRIKEET B R 381 368
8,003 7,718
8,399 8,114
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FHELEEERERQA

8.

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)
() Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-NFE=ZA=+—H

8. EERANUBSHEEME (HA)

() EEM= (&)
() BUIFBTEE
RAFEAN FTEILIEHR

directors during the year were as follows: FEEZHESWT
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok SRR B O 132 132
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth FARN G2 St 132 132
Mr. Ho Yau Ming Al R BA &4 132 132
396 396

There were no other emoluments payable to
the independent non-executive directors during
the year (2017: Nil).

RAFER - WEENETIF
HTESZEMHME (=F
—tF ) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

8.

(i) Executive directors

2018

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

2017

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

There was no arrangement under which a

director waived or agreed to waive any

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

—E-N\E

BOTES:

BRARE
FERLL
BFMLL
BAELT
R8Izt
REXLE

—E—tF

BOTES:
BRARE
FEELL
EE2] B
BAEZL

remuneration during the year.
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8. EERABSHEEMNS (H)

() EEM= (&)

(i) BTEFE

Pension
Salaries and Discretionary scheme Total
allowances bonuses contributions remuneration
Rike

FeREH WA HE I MewsE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FET AT TET
1,491 314 90 1,895
1,491 251 87 1,829
870 130 50 1,050

870 130 50 1,050

622 95 36 753

1,180 178 68 1,426
6,524 1,098 381 8,003
1,491 186 84 1,761
1,491 186 84 1,761

870 109 49 1,028

870 109 49 1,028

622 91 36 749

1,157 168 66 1,391
6,501 849 368 7,718

RAFER  WEEFHFELR
RARAERETMHE 2 &

B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EERANUBSHEEME (HA)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Five highest paid employees’ emoluments (b) AU BEFEEMS
The five highest paid employees during the year RAFER  AfiG=HEEBE
included five (2017: five) executive directors, details A (ZE—EF A BiTE
of whose remuneration are disclosed in note 8(a) T HEE 2HFBE RN EXH &
above. 8@ & -
9. INCOME TAX 9. FiEH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of RARFEER  BENSROBRESTEE
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in A7 ET TR R TR T 12 16.5% 2 B % £
Hong Kong during the year. In the prior year, no provision H-REFEN BRASEBEEHEE
for Hong Kong profits tax had been made as the Group ARTF E R R A BT B 18 - BIHE
had available tax losses brought forward from prior years AR ERTRT - B ERE AT S
to offset the assessable profits generated. Taxes on FEL A - iR 2 FER B G AR
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the BIRBEASEXEBMERR 2BTH
rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group REHE -
operates.
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAET
Current — Hong Kong BVER— &%
Charge for the year rEEEM 1,450 -
Overprovision in prior years BIEFEEREE (20) _
Current — Elsewhere BN ER— H fh3h [
Charge for the year rEEER 43 -
Overprovision in prior years BT R R (4) (19)
Deferred (note 22) EIERLIE (M 5E22) 638 641
Total tax charge for the year RNEEHIBEEREE 2,107 622
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

9. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to
profit before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expense/(credit) at the effective

tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e.,

9. FiiE® (M)

FHELEEERERQA

RARRBRERNBOMHE QR E
ZANRE R ZAER R R ZBRBA
HEMBERZRERS (BR) BRE
BB RFEHARY, (BR) 24
B ARGERM R (BDEEM X) BB

the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as MR ZHEMT :
follows:
2018
—E-N\F
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
EE Hith & CL
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TET TR TET
Profit before tax FR B A& 114,917 83,702 198,619
Tax at the statutory tax rate WEEMEAEZHE 18961 165 14,229 170 33,190 16.7
Adjustments in respect of Eapdi il
current tax of previous ST
periods GoEEE: (20) - (4) - (24) -
Income not subject to tax BRERBZHPA (12,188)  (10.6) (14,122) (16.9) (26,310) (13.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax ~ RAIHIF 2 X 187 0.1 1 - 188 0.1
Tax losses utilised EHRCHEER (4,595) (4.0) = - (4595) (23)
Others Hith (277) 0.2) (65) (0.1) (342) 0.2)
Tax charge at the Group's BASEERTRNE
effective rate ZHIBEA 2,068 1.8 39 - 2,107 1.1
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FHELEEERERQA

9. INCOME TAX (continued)

2017
—E—+F

Profit before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate

Adjustments in respect of
current tax of previous
periods

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax losses utilised

Others

Tax charge at the Group's

effective rate

BBt A A

BEEREFTREZHR
HZAHRZ
SEARE

GOECE:S
BERBZBA
TR 2 A
EBRHBER
it

BRASEERBXHE
ZHBER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

9. FiiE® ()

Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
B H it & &t
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
TR TET TET
46,692 59,297 105,989
7,704 16.5 10,080 17.0 17,784 16.8
- - (19) - (19) -
(5818)  (125) (10075)  (17.0) (15893)  (15.0)
3,317 7.1 1 - 3,318 3.1
(4,022) (8.6) - - (4022) (3.8)
(540) (1.1) (6) - (546) (0.5)
641 1.4 (19) - 622 06
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

10. DIVIDEND

11.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, and the number of
ordinary shares of 5,780,368,705 (2017: 5,780,368,705)

in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company. The number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued
at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into

ordinary shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 March
2018 and 2017 in respect of a dilution as the impact of
the share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect

on the basic earnings per share amounts presented.
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10. B2

11.

EETEEREE-_TE—NF=A
S+-—HLEFERNKRBARE (ZF
—tFE) e
EAREBERRERSEAEWN
BREF
BRERBNSENIRBARR G EHER
BRIEFRAE ABGORNFE R RARNFEE
WEETEBREE5780,368,705M%
(ZZ—+% :5780,368,705%) 5t &

BREERNSBENRRARREEK
BERFEABRIEAFZRNTE -8
RAAANEERNEBERRAFEAR
BHONEBRR AR ESRELRR
MEEA - LA EE BT B
WRBITERBESEBEE - BERMN
EREZBTHEBEROMEFHE -
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FHELEEERERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per

share are based on:

Earnings

Profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company, used in
the basic and diluted earnings per

share calculation

Shares

Number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, used in
the basic and diluted earnings

per share calculation

2

AAEEBRERNEE

EFNRERZARE

EEBEERB A
J& A 3 )

B 1
RAFEANAETK
e SE: S papillis
ERzE T
Epilig ¢!

11.

B F5 3R R P EE
31 March 2018

—F-N\F=A=+-H

RAREBRRERA ARG

BREN (&)

SR EA RS BN TR T STEHE -

2018 2017
—E-N\EF e
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T FET
148,611 76,482
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —EF—+F

5,780,368,705

5,780,368,705
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017
and 1 Aprl 2017:
Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 April 2017, net of
accumulated depreciation
Additions
Disposals
Defict on revaluation
Depreciation provided during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2018, net of

accumulated depreciation

At 31 March 2018;
Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount
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Z2-NEZA=t-H

RoE-LE=A=1-H
R-F-t5BA-B:
BAZfafE
2RfE

BHFE

RZE-+EEA-8 -
Hh2RAELFE
hE

ik

E3y
REERRMERE
3R

RoB-NFzR=t-8-

HE2ERELRE

RZF-NEZR=1-A:

RAZRE
2iE

RAFE

12.M% - -BERRE

FHELEEERERQA

Land and Furniture,

buildingsin ~ Leasehold ~fixtures and Motor Cruise

Hong Kong  improvements  equipment vehicles ships Total
2 RENR BR-

tiRET kB RERRE hE L ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin TR TR Tin TR TR
25518 3114 1,792 2,654 257,400 290478
(6,433) (3,086) (1,575) (2,067) = (13,161)
19,085 28 217 587 257,400 271317
19,085 28 207 587 257,400 271317
= = 170 1969 23,303 25,442
- - - (404) - (404)
- - - - (11,089 (11,089)
(115) @) (97) (235) (24957) (26,025)
= = = = 18,197 18,197
18,370 1 290 1917 262,860 283,438
25518 3114 1,962 2,285 262,860 295,739
(7,148) (3113) (1672) (3668) - (1300)
18,370 1 290 1917 262,860 283,438
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BA ¥R R M sE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)  12. ¥ % « BiE & % & (&)

Land and Furniture,
builingsin -~ Leasehold ~ fixtures and Motor Cruise
Hong Kong improvements ~ equipment vehicles ships Total

5 BERE SR

tHRES %6 RERAE  AE BE 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt TER  TER AR TER  TER

31 March 2017 ZE-tEZf=1-A
At T April 2016: RZF-REMA-R:
Cost or valuation AR EE 25518 3,114 1737 2654 269880 302903
Accumulated depreciation ZRTE (5718) (3,057) (1470) (1920) - (12169)
Net carrying amount RAFE 19,800 57 267 734 269880 290738
At 1 April 2016, net of RZZ-AFEA-R"
accumulated depreciation Nh2ENE,FE 19,800 57 267 734 269880 290,738
Additions TE - - 55 - 43,057 43112
Deficit on revaluation EfREH - - - - (17476)  (17476)
Depreciation provided during the year REERERZTERR (115) (29) (105) (147) (29769 (30,165)
Exchange realignment EiA% - - - - (8892) (8892)
At 31 March 2017, net of R_E-+F=R=zT-H"
accumulated depreciation TRERNE5E 19,085 28 207 587 257,400 277317
At 31 March 2017: RZE—tEZA=+-0:
Cost or valuation RALIEE 25518 3174 1,792 2654 257400 290478
Accumulated depreciation 2FhE (6,433) (3,086) (1,575) (2,067) - (13,161)
Net carrying amount REE 19,085 28 217 587 257400 277317
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31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The net carrying amount of the Group's property, plant
and equipment held under finance leases included in the
total amount of land and buildings at 31 March 2018
was HK$14,190,000 (2017: HK$14,744,000).

The Group's cruise ships were revalued on 31 March
2018 by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, on an open
market, existing use basis. A revaluation deficit of
HK$11,089,000 (2017: deficit of HK$17,476,000)
resulted from the above valuation, of which deficit of
HK$78,000 (2017: HK$27,201,000) has been charged
to the statement of profit or loss and deficit of
HK$11,011,000 (2017: surplus of HK$9,725,000) has
been charged (2017: credited) to other comprehensive

income.
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12. % - BERRE (&)

RZEBE—NF=ZA=1+—H ~XEEY
¥ BERREOEEDFEPUMRER
EFARBREN T HREFTLFEED
14,190,000 T (Z & — + F :
14,744,000 7T) °

AEEBHR _T—N\F=ZA=+—8
HBEVEESERGEEMRETEET
HEBARARBEBRERAEUART
BEHETER - FlEEEEZ SHEA
/311,089,000 T (ZFT —tF : E Al
17,476,0007% JT) - H 9 /& 4178,0007%
T (=ZF—+4% 127,201,000/ 70) 21
BiEsmk  ARHEFPEA11,011,000%
7T (ZZF— 1 F : B#9,725000% 7T)
AEME (ZE—+F 57 A)Hitb 2|
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31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)  12. ¥ % « BiE & % & (&)

Fair value hierarchy REEEERX
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TREREEE RN TEETEE
hierarchy of the Group's cruise ships: R

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

R=ZB=t—-HAFEFERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B EXA BERAT
TS RE BEBAE BEGAE
(BE—ER) (€= -0/9) (E=ER) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEL FEL
Recurring fair value BEUAT
measurement for: BEE:
2018 —2-N\F
Cruise ships g - - 262,860 262,860
2017 I
Cruise ships iy - - 257,400 257,400
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value NEAFEERN BETE—BALE B
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no W e G AL S = B i A s
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil). HAEEEAFE (- —+F &) o
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BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)  12. ¥ % « BiE & % /& (&)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) ANFEEEX(E)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised PERRAFEEBANE=BRIRHAF
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: BETEMNHE:

Cruise ships

B

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Carrying amount at beginning of year REEVINRE 257,400 269,880

Addition NE 23,303 43,057
Depreciation provided REFRERNZINE

during the year BE (24,951) (29,169)

Deficit on revaluation EHhBA (11,089) (17,476)

Exchange realignment HE H AR 18,197 (8,892)

Carrying amount as at 31 March R=ZA=+—HKHNEE2E 262,860 257,400
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12.

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used

and the key inputs to the valuation of cruise ships:

Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs
EX
b BB TUBRBAE

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

M- BERFRE (&)

AP EEER ()

DA 75 9t 58 4 1 {5 T 53 400 it B A0 I
IEHAENORE

Cruise ships Market data or comparative Market price per unit
sales approach
Bin GiRE ¢ BEMMSER

HEA

Cost approach
A

Remaining useful life
HRERFR

Rate of newness

P 3T R

Market discount rate
[ EigiES

The market data or comparative sales approach considers

prices recently paid for similar assets, with adjustments

made to the indicated market prices to reflect the

condition and utility of the appraised assets relative to

the market comparative. Assets for which there is an

established secondhand market comparable are best

appraised by this approach.

The key input was the market price per unit, which a

significant increase/decrease in the market price would

result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value

of the cruise ships.

Range
2018 2017
—E-N\E “E—+F
US$31,960,000 US$31,170,000
to US$35,758,000 to US$34,776,000
31,960,000% 7T 31,170,000% 7T
#£35,758,000% T Z£34,776,000% 1T
4 to 17 years 4 to 17 years
AZ175E AT 175
4% to 11% 5% to 12%
4%ZE11% 500% 12%
80% to 100% 80% to 100%
80%Z100% 80%% 100%

MIZBBA AL BIHE AL BRINE
UEEMANMER  XHEENTS
BRELAR  UARBBHATLER T
B AEENRANAR AEEY
A LB — F RIS EE K ARG

REfE-

£ o

Sim
o

TEHAERBEMMGER - M
RARIEE I, B e SR QT (EE
RIEHE I, o

¢

=
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BA RS R R aE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)  12. ¥ % « BiE & % /& (&)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The cost approach considers the cost to reproduce or
replace in new condition the assets appraised in
accordance with current market prices for similar assets,
with allowance for accrued depreciation arising from
condition, utility, age, wear and tear, or obsolescence
present, taking into consideration past and present

maintenance policy and rebuilding history.

The key inputs were the rate of newness and the market
discount rate, which a significant increase/decrease in the
rate of newness in isolation would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the cruise ships
and a significant increase/decrease in the market
discount rate in isolation would result in a significant

decrease/increase in the fair value of the cruise ships.

Had the cruise ships been carried at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, their
carrying amount would have been approximately
HK$243,530,000 (2017: HK$245,002,000).

At 31 March 2018, the land and buildings in Hong Kong
with a net carrying value of HK$12,809,000 (2017:
HK$13,241,000) were pledged to secure a banking
facility granted to the Group (note 27).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’'s investment properties consist of five
commercial properties in Hong Kong and one commercial
property in Singapore. The Group's investment properties
were revalued on 31 March 2018 by Knight Frank Petty
Limited and PREMAS Valuers & Property Consultants Pte.
Ltd., independent professionally qualified valuers, at an
aggregate balance of HK$676,424,000 (2017:
HK$630,860,000). Each year, the Group's executive
directors decide, after approval from the audit committee,
to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the
external valuations of the Group's properties. Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group's executive directors have
discussions with the valuers on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is

performed for interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further details of which are

included in note 28(a) to the financial statements.

Certain of the Group's investment properties located in
Hong Kong with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$319,400,000 (2017: HK$286,200,000) and
investment properties located in Singapore with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$142,324,000 (2017:
HK$130,660,000) at 31 March 2018 have been pledged
to secure bank loan and banking facilities granted to the
Group as further detailed in notes 21 and 27. Further
details of the Group's investment properties are included
on pages 203 and 204.

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

13. REYHE

AEBNKRENEBELBERBEEZE
EMER—BRFTMEZEEDE - R
T N\F=ZA=+—H FrEEHEK
BMERBIEERAERMAER AT
5T AT 7T B BR A 7] XPREMAS Valuers &
Property Consultants Pte. Ltd.ZE {4 E
676,424,000 L (Z & — £ F -
630,860,000/ 7T) ° B4 » AEEHTT
EENERZEeHERAELZ AW —
KIMNELERM B EAEBY EHNINEDH
B -BERUDETISHE B2 F
MRS EFEEKE - REEHIT
EFHEGEMBFRPHREFHBR
SETHERNREERSEREELS

IR

BELEHEE KEVEDHETE=
7 BRE—THBENMBEHRERME
28(a) °

R-ZZE—NFEZA=+—8 XEEE
E#2{E319,400,0008 7T (Z T — £ F -
286,200,000/8 70) 2 i R EHE B E T
T E YA R ERE 4 {E142,324,000/8
7L (ZZF—+1%F 130,660,000/ L) 2
CLREFT MBI EMEEEER - R
BAEEERZBITERREITRE -
— S HBRWE2IR27 - AEBE K
B E - T HBHNFE203K%204

o

Wy

\
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31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's investment properties:

Recurring fair value

measurement for:

2018

Commercial properties

2017

Commercial properties

FEUERT

BB E -

—E-N\F
[GESVES

—E—tF
mENE

FHELEEERERQA

13. REYE ()
AFEEER
TRETARERENEODFEEN

REX:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

R=ZA=+-BRAVEEFERA

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B BAH BARH
miEHRE BEEBAE BEBAE
(B—EX) (BB (B=EX) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTERT T THET
= = 676,424 676,424
- - 630,860 630,860

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil).
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B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REWE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NFEEEEX(E)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised DERAFEEAERRNE=ZERORF
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: BETEMNHE:

Commercial properties

[GE /S

2018 2017

—E2-N\F —T—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

Carrying amount at beginning of year RERINERE SR 630,860 628,425
Gains from fair value KELAFEEARZ

adjustments, net Wz - FRE 35,634 6,600

Exchange realignment M 3, 8 B 9,930 (4,165)

Carrying amount at 31 March R=ZA=+—HREES® 676,424 630,860
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31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13.

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used

and the key inputs to the valuation of investment

FHELEEERERQA

properties:
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs
EX
fhE R Lk -3 PN
Commercial Direct comparison Market price per square foot
properties approach method
[GE3/ES BERLBA BEHRMGER

Income capitalisation

approach method BYFRMHHE
WAB R E Capitalisation rate
- W s

Market rent per square foot

HK$230 to HK$640

BEWE(E)
AFEEEER(E)
T AEREEMEMEMEANGEER
fikEZ@MmABEBNRE
Range
& E
2018 2017
—E-N\E “E—+F
HK$19,000 HK$15,000
to HK$38,000 to HK$35,000
19,0007 Tt 15,000/ 7T
£38,00058 T 235,000 7T

HK$280 to HK$600

2308 TE640B T 280/ TLE600%E T
2.75% to 3.00% 2.75% to 3.00%
2.75%%3.00% 2.75%Z% 3.00%

The direct comparison approach method provides the
market value of an expropriated property by comparing it
to values obtained in the open market of similar
properties. It follows three basic steps in arriving at the
value of the properties, including identifying the highest
and best use of the property; identifying similar
properties that have been previously sold (the
“comparable sales”); and adjusting the value of the

comparable sales.

The key input was the market price per square foot,
which a significant increase/decrease in the market price
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair

value of the investment property.
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FHELEEERERQA

13.

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value determined by the income capitalisation
approach method is the sum of the term value and the
reversionary value by discounting the contracted annual
rent at the capitalisation rate over the existing lease
period; and the sum of the average unit market rent at

the capitalisation rate after the existing lease period.

The key inputs were the market rent per square foot and
the capitalisation rate, which a significant increase/
decrease in the market rent in isolation would result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties and a significant increase/decrease
in the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the

investment properties.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests are set out below:

Percentage of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:

FERESFANRIEZEF D :
Century Rich Investments Limited
Jackston Maritime Limited
Queenston Maritime Limited
Kingston Maritime Limited

New Century Maritime Limited

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.

14.

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

REME &)
DFEERBRX(E)

NBABREEEENRFEBE/NAE
A RBEHNFHeBRBREHEN
FROAEEEREREEMNEM &
BEHERRNFOEUmSHERE
AACLL RITBRAAERM -

EEWAEATFIRTSEERAR
fEte% - BT S EBABEM, ML
EEUREME AT EEARHIN W
Do EREL R BBABEN, AL E
EEREWEATEEAEAD, M -

il

ARERFERERND D HE
BHE AR
BEAFERESOAEENE RN
FIEHFIIMT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
40 40

40 40

40 40

40 40

40 40
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BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

14. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

FHELEEERERQA

14 ERERFERESNID &

Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to non-controlling interests:

SEWMFFERESNEFERT (FHB)
Century Rich Investments Limited

Jackston Maritime Limited

Queenston Maritime Limited

Kingston Maritime Limited

New Century Maritime Limited

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests during the year:

REFEAXNTFHRERBEZHRE :

New Century Maritime Limited

Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests
at the reporting dates:

RBEAHFERERNRTER

Century Rich Investments Limited

Jackston Maritime Limited

Queenston Maritime Limited

Kingston Maritime Limited

New Century Maritime Limited
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
14,172 10,179
5,206 122
9,758 3,087
17,571 16,017
1,194 (520)

- 40,000

15,015 843
8,754 3,131
13,828 3,470
22,012 7,801
8,352 2,592
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B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

14. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 14. EEERFEREZNID B

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) BB AT (&)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TRETNLANBARNTBHESR
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts are Ko PTEER & RARGTEMR QA H 8E A0
disclosed before any inter-company eliminations: RERE
2018
—E-N\HF
Century Rich Jackston  Queenston Kingston New Century
Investments Maritime Maritime Maritime Maritime
Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx TER TER TER TER

Revenue and other income WAREMBA 36,898 16,483 31,777 58,132 2,994
Total expenses HY @5 (1,468) (3,467) (7,382) (14,205) )
Profit for the year REFHRM 35,430 13,016 24,395 43,927 2,987
Total comprehensive income TEEZENE

for the year ek 35,430 13,016 24,395 32,916 2,987
Current assets MEAE 283,451 10,823 7,354 5,568 459,457
Non-current assets FRBEE - 14,040 34,320 214,500 156
Current liabilities nBAR (245,914) (2,978) (7,104)  (165,038)  (438,732)
Net cash flows from RELEEE

operating activities ZEEREFE 160,747 5,011 20,436 40,903 31,259
Net cash flows used in BAREEEE

an investing activity LREREFR = = = (23,303) -
Net cash flows from/ RE/ (AR BEED

(used in) financing activities ZHEEREFE 26,677 (5,009) (20,435) (17,606) 190
Net increase/(decrease) ReRBREEEY

in cash and cash equivalents 2Em/ (Rb) 38 187,424 2 1 (6) 31,449
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31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

14. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts are

disclosed before any inter-company eliminations:

(continued)

14.

FHELEEERERQA

EREXRFERESNID &
BB R (&)

TREBETLAMNBARMNPBMESR
Kt o BT ER & R REHER 2 B fE 4 85 AT
MWEwE: (8)

2017
—E—+tF
Century Rich Jackston  Queenston Kingston  New Century
Investments Maritime Maritime Maritime Maritime
Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FEL FEL FET FET
Revenue and other income LONSEL LN 25516 15,972 37,076 51,777 171
Total expenses Y aE (68) (15,666) (29,359) (11,734) (1,471)
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERETF/ (B8) 25,448 306 7,717 40,043 (1,300)
Total comprehensive income/ AEEZ2ENE/

(loss) for the year (B8 BE 25,448 306 7717 49,768 (1,300)
Current assets RBEE 220,034 3,898 2274 13 439,126
Non-current assets FRBEE - 16,380 39,000 202,020 156
Current liabilities meaE (217,926) (12,450) (32,599)  (182,530)  (432,801)
Net cash flows from REEZES

operating activities ZHEREFE 25,674 25,595 84,628 33,587 82,245
Net cash flows used in FARBEEE

financing activities LEEMEFE (17,013) (25,594) (84,625) (33,574)  (100,000)
Net increase/(decrease) HeRBREZEY

in cash and cash equivalents ZEm/ (RD) 58 8,661 1 3 13 (17,755)
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FHELEEERERQA

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables B E F R
The Group's billing terms with customers are mainly on
credit. Invoices are normally payable within 30 days of
issuance. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
senior management. The main type of collateral held by
the Group as security is deposits received from tenants
and charterers with an aggregate value of
HK$21,857,000 (2017: HK$1,644,000). Except trade
receivables of HK$24,296,000 (2017: HK$5,497,000)
which bear interest at fixed rates, the trade receivables

are non-interest-bearing.

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

Within 1 month — @A R

1 to 2 months —ZWE A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

15. EWWE S R™

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
32,829 6,054

AEEEBEERCEREREENUEE
ST  BEBEANELER=1TH
NEBE-B—HBEEZREELR - A%
[ 1F 7 SKE R B8 2 YRR R0 DA BR =2
ZH - S REBAESETHES R
FIE - AEERBEERERZEMME
ﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁ&ﬁ%k%mﬁﬁmA
21,857,000 70 (=& — £ F -

1,644,000 7T) 2 & ® ° %24,296,000
Bt (ZE —+F 15,497,000 7T) &)
JEW B 5 BR TR E E F E T EF B -
FEWE SRR T TR R o

REZZAH RNREHREREES
RRFETTHRRE DTN T

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
HK$'000 HK$'000

T T FHET
30,645 6,054
2,184 -
32,829 6,054
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BA RS R R aE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The aging analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is

as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than 1 month past due

1 to 3 months past due

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for

whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.

Certain subsidiaries have pledged trade receivables with
an aggregate carrying value of HK$5,000 (2017:
HK$119,000) and HK$78,000 (2017: HK$119,000) to
secure bank loan and banking facilities granted,

respectively (notes 21 and 27).
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15. B E 5 IR (&)
3 B R K R R E 2 FEAE SRR
REAATINT :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
24,296 5,497
6,349 557
2,184 -
32,829 6,054

KA MERE S MR YRR S
TRANEZEN  ®EEERLRER
HIERE -

BB R ERE 2 R U BR SR Y B B B
AEBERRMFCBEZBIETAR R
EBELR ARAEFEAR HRZ
FERELGFEEERUESREHMAR
WRBERAEZENRE - RBARZSF
REERIE L BUE B -

ETHBAREBESRIBERES LA
5,000 7T (ZF —+14F : 119,000% 7T )
578,000 7L (ZF — 4+ 4 : 119,000
BIL)MERE SERIERERRTE
A RATRL A MR (P aE21 ]k27) -
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FHELEEERERQA

16.

17.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 16.

RECEIVABLES

Prepayments TE T FRIE
Deposits and other receivables 1’ e K H At &R K

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired

and there was no recent history of default.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17.

PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed equity investments, rFRERE
at market value BmE

The above equity investments at 31 March 2018 and
2017 were classified as held for trading and were, upon
initial recognition, designated by the Group as financial

assets at fair value through profit or loss.

At 31 March 2018, the Group’s equity investments
amounting to HK$139,154,000 (2017: HK$422,001,000)
were pledged to secure other borrowing and securities
margin account facilities granted to the Group as further
detailed in notes 21 and 27.

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

ANRE BEREMEVERR

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —EF—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T T T
930 935

7,686 3,671
8,616 4,606

BELMEERCBMRCHE £
H 7T 3 4 36 R SR IR RS 8% ©

BAFEESAESNRER
&

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
139,154 422,001

RZE—NEkZZE—tF=A=+—
B EliREREDNDERIFEESE -
REBMAVEHERNIEETAKRATFER
ARG EREE -

R-Z—NE=ZA=+—0 A&£@EA
#139,154,0008 L (Z T — £ F -
422,001,0008 7T) 2 kR E B EE
HURGBRTAEE 2 AMERRE
FREFCEPRE  E—FFBRMT
21 %27 °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R R aE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

17. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Assuming the portfolio of the Group's equity investments
remained unchanged, the market value of the Group's
equity investments at the date of approval of these

financial statements was approximately HK$120,392,000.

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances BERIRITHER
Time deposits aiRER N

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted to approximately HK$10,000 (2017:
HK$9,100). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and twelve
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no

recent history of default.
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17.

18.

FHELEEERERQA

BRATEEFTABRNIRER
& (&)
BREAEENREREEGHFTE
AEBHRBERENTTBHHRRILEZ
H®MEL A120,392,000% 7T °

HeRBRESEEY

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —F—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T TFHET

46,871 46,581

746,896 342,782

793,767 389,363

RIBEHR AEEUARE (TAR
) REEBNNBEERRSEEYD
#93# 10,0008 7T (ZF —+ 4% : 9,100%
) BEARETHEEEMERKAHR
A BRBE B KR INEEE K
Pl #EE  EERNEEERRTE K&
B EREREETINEEBNRITEA
REHRBEEMEY -

RITFRDRIEE B RITFRM ERF
XL - BMEMERZFHREE
NF—HE+_EAATSE RFELEH
ZEABREFEME » WIRSEHTEBR
TFRM KGR - |RITHEFEREHREFERTS
TFRNEE R B ET B4 R IR A
82 R1T o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

19. ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS 19. BT 1B - EMENEREZFEE I
RECEIVED rE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Accruals &St IR 1,684 2,137
Other payables and HMENRR R
deposits received B iz e 25,759 40,422
27,443 42,559
Portion classified as DERERD
non-current liabilities BENHS (3,999) (3,123)
Current portion mEEE 23,444 39,436
The other payables are non-interest-bearing and are HihpENREZ AT E  — ARt
normally settled on 90-day terms. BR#EE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Equity option accumulator REHERE
contracts RIEHES LD

Equity option decumulator R RTE
contracts ROLEIE AR

The equity option accumulator contracts and equity
option decumulator contracts were a series of forward
contracts for the Group to accumulate and decumulate,
respectively, specific units of certain securities listed on
the Stock Exchange according to the contracts at
predetermined prices on every trading day. The equity
option accumulator contracts and equity option
decumulator contracts would be terminated automatically
if the closing prices of the underlying securities on any
specified trading day during the contract periods are at or
above, and at or below, respectively, the predetermined
knock-out prices.

These contracts were derivative financial instruments and
were measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. As at 31 March 2018, the fair value of the equity
option accumulator contracts and equity option
decumulator contracts for the Group were stated at a
credit balance of HK$510,000 (2017: debit balance of
HK$153,000) and net credit balance of HK$2,674,000
(2017: HK$833,000), respectively, based on the
valuation performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer, and fair value losses of HK$2,504,000
(2017: gains of HK$768,000) in respect of these
contracts were recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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20. fTE€®MTIA

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
BE &f& EE afE

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT TEx THET TAET

= 510 153 -
107 2,781 6 839
107 3,291 159 839

EREREIREAERRAORREE
REREHRANRAKERBEEOHE
BEXZARBTERRERBENRRRE
RHEBRXMETNETESNREE
M —RIRHAH -  WRBHEEFE
BHHREATMERRZANKHED
AIEREHR RFRIERTEE KD
B AREHERERBEES O &K
SHREZBATHRSOEEHRIL -

nur

ZEAHMBTTESR T A RBEHX
BEAFEEFE - R_T—N\F=A
=t+t—H BREBIUEEAERMHER
EITHEE AEEREHERERE
HEAALREHEZBRIGHESYD
AT EES R AE T E510,000%8
TT(ZZE—+F G5 ##153,000%87T)
LB F%2,674,0008 L (ZF
—+ % :833,00087L) F WERZES
WEGAEBEERNERATFEEEBR
2,504,000 L (ZF —+tF : =
768,000/ 7T) ©
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FHELEEERERQA

21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS

Current ik

Current portion of RERAER
long-term bank CboE Do)

loans, secured (B5A)

REBAER
long-term bank CboE Do)
loans, secured (B5A)

Current portion of

Other borrowing EEREEH
tepayeble on demand,  EfbfEF (HEH)
secured (Note) (M3t

Non-current it )

Longterm bank loans, ~ RHRTEH
secured (FEHR)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

2. 5T ESRITREMER

2018
Z§-0\%

Contractual
interest rate (%)

SRR (%)

Singapore Interbank
offered rate + 1.38% p.a.
it
BOBERS + 138EER

Singapore Interbank
offered rate + 2.00% p.a.
it
BORERS + 200EE8

Singapore Interbank

offered rate + 1.38% p.a.

QI
ROBFERE + 138EER

Maturity ~ HK$'000
38R TEn

2019 871

On demand 697

LE

1574

2020-2038 21,863
it Jut 33

23,437

2017
Bt
Contractual
interest rate (%) Maturty — HK$'000
AN () U8R TER

Hong Kong

Prime rate - 1.675% pa.  On demand 908

SEZFE - 1675858 EERER

Singapore Interbank

offered rate + 1.38% p.a. 2018 807

i

BOEERE +138EFE  —T-N\F

5.00% pa.  On demand 530

S00EEE  EEXEER

2,245

Singapore Interbank

offered rate + 1.38% pa. 2019-2038 21,138

“E-NE
s 2

BOEERE +138EFE T N\F

23,383
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

21.

FHELEEERERQA

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 21. 5T ESRITREMMER (E)

BORROWINGS (continued)

Analysed into:
Bank loans repayable:
Within one year or on
demand (Note)
In the second year
In the third to fifth years,
inclusive

Beyond the fifth year

Other borrowing repayable:

Within one year or on demand

w
Fi
F
g
NN
1
it
s

Note: As at 31 March 2017, the Group's term loan in the B 5

amount of HK$908,000 containing an on-demand clause

had been reclassified as current liabilities. For the

purpose of the above analysis, the loan was included

within current interest-bearing bank borrowing and

analysed into bank loan repayable within one year or on
demand. As at 31 March 2017, based on the maturity

term of the loan, the amount repayable in respect of the

loan was HK$908,000 within one year.
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
877 1,715
900 826
2,840 2,602
18,123 17,710
22,740 22,853
697 530
23,437 23,383

R-ZE—tE=ZA=+—8 4%
E % %008,0008 THEMEREAE
RERKBERNERNR AELEH
SERRBEE R EASTME
ZEERBREERDITERITER
W WATAER—FRAREERE
BZROIBER - RZZE—tF=A
=+—B  BEEXROIEGER 5
BERmE RN—FANEEENSE
908,000/ 7T °
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FHELEEERERQA

21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group's bank loans are secured by:

0]

(i)

(iii)

mortgages over certain of the Group's investment
properties which had an aggregate carrying value at
the end of the reporting period of approximately
HK$142,324,000 (2017: HK$324,660,000) (note
13);

corporate guarantees up to HK$216,910,000 (2017:
HK$194,870,000) provided by the Company; and

rental assignment over certain of the Group's
investment properties, which included the Group's
trade receivables with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$5,000 (2017: HK$119,000).

The Group's other borrowing is secured by certain of the

Group's equity investments with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$48,118,000 (2017: HK$52,286,000).

As at 31 March 2018, all bank and other borrowings are

denominated in Singapore dollars and bear interest at

floating interest rates. As at 31 March 2017, except for a
secured bank loan of HK$21,945,000 which was

denominated in Singapore dollars, all bank and other

borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Bank loans bore interest at floating interest rates and

other borrowing bore interest at fixed interest rate.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

21. S ERIT R EAER ()

AREBIRITEFA TS BEEA

() AEEZETREWMEZRE RN
AREHR ZEEEZHREEE
#9142,324,0008 7T (ZFE —+4F -
324,660,000/ 7T) (FI5E13)

(i) RRAFREBZAAEREZ A
216,910,000 L (ZF —t 4 ¢
194,870,000/& 7T) + &

(iii) mﬁg**ﬂﬁiﬁ%%zmé%%'
HABEASEZ EBWE SHEXR -
ﬁﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁ%@S,OOO}%E(ig_t
F 119,000 7T) °

AEENEMERAAEEBEREE S
RE#748,118,0008 L (=& — L4 :
52,286,000/ 7T) K& TR IER E1E R
A

RZZE-N\F=RA=1+—H AR
K H 1m1ﬁ*”ELx%ﬁbui)327u7%%;:$u’
WiRZEF EFE —t+t&F=A
+—8" /\Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%m
21,945,000/ T AT N T R4S E BT
G FTBERITREAMERIIAB T AL
BB RITH; Amﬁﬁf-iﬁruz‘ﬁ%ﬁ :
M H A A8 SR R E E R R 5T E
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 22. BEEREEE BF
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets BERIBEEREERAFEANZESH
during the year are as follows: LU
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHBEEE
2018
—E-N\F

Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related

depreciation

MERTE

ZREENITE

HK$'000

THExT

At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FMHWHA—H 7,278
Deferred tax charged to the statement of RAFERNEBZEANRKRZ

profit or loss during the year (note 9) EFERTE (MF5E9) 657

Gross deferred tax liabilities RZZE-NF=ZA=+—H
at 31 March 2018 ZIBRETRIA B EER 7,935
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FHELEEERERQA

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows: (continued)

Deferred tax assets

At 1 April 2017
Deferred tax credited to the statement of
profit or loss during the year (note 9)

Gross deferred tax assets
at 31 March 2018

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 April 2016
Deferred tax charged to the statement of
profit or loss during the year (note 9)

Gross deferred tax liabilities
at 31 March 2017

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

22. EEBIHEE BE (&)
EERABEREERAFERZE

T (88)
BEEHBEE
2018
—E-N\F
Losses available
for offsetting
against future
taxable profits
A] A4 85 AR 2R
ERBGEH 2 EE
HK$'000
THERT
RZE—+FMA—H (4,167)
REAFRERNEBRRETANGTALZ
EIER I8 (M FE9) 19)
RZE—-—N\F=ZA=+—~H
ZIRETIE A E A (4,186)
BEEHREEE
2017
—ET—+tF
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related
depreciation
FrERNE
ZREENITE
HK$'000
THET
R-ZZT—RNFHEA—H 6,198
REAFENERREXANKZ
EFERIA (M 5E9) 1,080
RZZE—+tF=A=+—H
ZEERIAREERE 7,278
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows: (continued)

Deferred tax assets

At 1 April 2016
Deferred tax credited to the statement of

profit or loss during the year (note 9)

Gross deferred tax assets
at 31 March 2017

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial

position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax

FHELEEERERQA

22 BEERBEE B E (F)

BEEFRBAGBREERAFEAN &
R (4E)
EEHEEE
2017
—E—tF

Losses available
for offsetting
against future

taxable profits

AJ {4 85 5K 2R

JERTL ANz B8

HK$'000

FET

RZZE—RFMNA—H (3,728)
RAFERNEBRERENGTAZ

EFERTE (MF5E9) (439)

RZZE—+F=A=+—H
ZIRERIAE E R (4,167)

balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes: o

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of

financial position
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2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FERT
Rz & g ARR R
MR IR IR
BEFHE 3,749

LR S - MBI R AE TELH
REENABE TEE - LA THIMERM
BHREREZAEBERER ALK Z D

2017
—t%F
HK$'000
TET

3,111
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$238,813,000 (2017: HK$267,400,000). The tax
losses in Hong Kong are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets of
HK$35,218,000 (2017: HK$39,954,000) have not been
recognised in respect of tax losses because these tax
losses have arisen in companies that have been loss-
making for some time and it is uncertain that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can

be utilised.

At 31 March 2018, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2017: Nil) for tax that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group's
subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional tax

should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its

shareholders.

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

22 BEERBEE B E (F)

AREBREBELER BEIB
238,813,000 T (=& — £ F -
267,400,000 L) - REBEE 2T
HEBEAERAREREEEERLD
Al 2 RRFERBE A o A KB K H %
ERNEEERAELCH EBAEE
35,218,000 7t (=& — & % -
39,954,000/ 7T) - A EMIBEEETY
REEEE-—BREBZAR mMATE
ERGHEEERTEFIAKIHEZED
BEE -

RZZE-—NE=ZRA=+—H XEEZ
MEBARYEEAKRELBNMASN 2
MEHBEMERRERELEHARE
—E—LF 8 AMZERAE
b AREYEBINHBAEE -

AR R E R R IR 83 S BT
FEBER -
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BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

FHELEEERERQA

23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. B A&
Shares % 4
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Authorised: JERE
40,000,000,000 ordinary 40,000,000,0000% & P& = &
shares of HK$0.0025 each 0.0025/8 70 2 T @ik 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRAR
5,780,368,705 ordinary 5,780,368,705% & IR H &
shares of HK$0.0025 each 0.0025/ 7T 2 i@ % 14,451 14,451
Share options B E

Details of the Company's share option schemes and the
share options granted under the schemes are included in

note 24 to the financial statements.

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4
September 2012, ordinary resolutions were passed for
the adoption of a share option scheme (the "2012 Share
Option Scheme") and the termination of the share option
scheme of the Company adopted on 23 September
2002 (the "2002 Share Option Scheme"”). Outstanding
share options granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme prior to the termination shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the 2002 Share

Option Scheme.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme and the 2002 Share
Option Scheme (collectively referred to as the
"Schemes”) are operated by the Company for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's

operations.

Annual Report 2018 £3§

24.

RN TR S A RIBIEZ S5 &%
HE A 2 BN B HRR M T
24 o

BREE
RZE—ZFNAAMBRITZARAIRK
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FHELEEERERQA

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Details of the Schemes are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Participants

Participants are any directors (including executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors) of the Company and
employees of the Group and any advisors
(professional or otherwise), consultants, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners, joint venture business partners, promoters,
service providers of any member of the Group who
the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or

will contribute to the Group.

Subscription price
The subscription price shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion but in any event

shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of HK$0.0025
each of the Company (the “Shares”) as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant of an
option (the “Date of Grant”) which must be a

business day;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days

immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

24. BB RESHE (&)
ZEEZFHBOAT
(a) 8HEE
SEER/RARRNFAMNES (BEH
TES  ERTEZRBIUIENT
EE)RAEBCZEERARAE
R ([EFEQ)REREBMER
ARG ERAEEELEMZ
EHEE M (EREEEE) KA
DiHE - ABR - fHER R
EA\Eﬁ‘%%%W*é%%%
B BFRARKAEEEMRKER
Az RISHER

(b) RBEE
é“ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%%‘\ﬁi BEMIEE
+ M R R ] %115&5/\7’@]&15
¢Wﬁ%%i

() A2 FHRKRMEEC0025% T
Z Bty (TR 3 1) £ B8 AR 7 4%
HEH(REBE]) (VER
BEH) YT E (VABE AT
HBKRAEERLE)

() RO AEEREL A OE
EXBETFHKRME (Lﬂyﬁx
FTEMERMEERE)

@iy B mEE -
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BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Details of the Schemes are as follows: (continued)

©

(d)

(e

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Schemes and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not, in the absence
of shareholders’ approval, in aggregate exceed 10%
in nominal amount of the aggregate of Shares in
issue on the adoption date of the Schemes (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit"). Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Schemes and (as
the case may be) such other share option schemes
of the Company will not be counted for the purpose

of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

Maximum number of options granted to
each participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
grantee under the Schemes (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any Shares
subject to options granted during such period under
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
other than those options granted pursuant to specific
approval by the shareholders in a general meeting)
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue for the time being
(the “Individual Limit").

Period of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in a period notified by
the Board to each grantee at the time of making an
offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years from
the Date of Grant.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Details of the Schemes are as follows (continued):

®

(®

Remaining life of the Schemes

The 2002 Share Option Scheme terminated on 4
September 2012. No further options shall thereafter
be offered under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
but the options which had been granted during its
life shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue and in all other
respects the provisions of the 2002 Share Option

Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on its
adoption date, unless otherwise cancelled or

amended.

Acceptance of options

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 and 30 days for the 2012 Share
Option Scheme and the 2002 Share Option
Scheme, respectively, from the Date of Grant, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total

by the Grantee.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the

Schemes during the year:

At beginning of year and
31 March

Annual Report 2018 £3§
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24. B ESTE (&)
RAEER - BIEZSE &M RTE

ZBBEFIRWT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of share exercise of share
price options price options

¥ g5
TREE  BREHE TEE  BREHE
HK$ per share ‘000 HK$ per share '000
BRET T BRAT T

REENR
=R=+—H 0.1902

386,640 0.1902 386,640



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

2018
—B—N\F

Number of share options

Exercise price*

BREHAR TREE*
‘000 HK$ per share
¥ BRET
252,040 0.2100
134,600 0.1532

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

24, B EFTE (E)

RBERR - WARITEZEREZITE
BRITEHET

Exercise period

1T 154

21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021
—E-——f-A=t+—-HE
—E=-—f—B=+H
03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
—E-=HhAHA=HZE
—E-=FhAZ=H

2017
e

Number of share options

Exercise price*

BREHAE 1TE(E*
‘000 HK$ per share

T BRET
252,040 0.2100
134,600 0.1532

Exercise period

1T1EH

21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021
—F——%-HA=t—HB=%
—E-—F—HA=+H
03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
—E-=ZFNhLAZ=ZHZE
—E-=FNAZH

There is no vesting period for the outstanding share
options granted to employees and directors.

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company's share capital.

BETREEREFMHERTEZ BREL
EREY-

MR AHRKREARET HEARQA

BT AR MELE D BRENT
EEEERTEE -
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

25.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
386,640,000 share options outstanding under the
Schemes. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 386,640,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$967,000 and share premium of
HK$95,598,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 386,640,000 share options outstanding
under the Schemes, which represented approximately

6.7% of the Company's shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on pages 74 and 75 of the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group arose from:

(i) the Group's reorganisation on 13 June 1990,
representing the excess of the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued under the Group's
reorganisation, and the nominal value of the shares
and share premium of the former holding company

acquired by the Group; and

(i) a transfer from the share premium account pursuant

to the capital restructuring on 2 June 1999.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

25.

26.

27.

RESERVES (continued)
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as

amended), the contributed surplus of the Group is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances

prescribed by section 54 thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related options

expire or be forfeited.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
outstanding guarantees of HK$216,910,000 (2017:
HK$194,870,000) given to banks to secure general credit
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Credit facilities in an aggregate amount of
HK$22,740,000 (2017: HK$22,853,000) had been
utilised by these subsidiaries in respect of these

guarantees as at the end of the reporting period.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's banking facilities and securities
margin account facilities, which are secured by the assets
of the Group, are included in notes 12, 13, 15 and 17 to

the financial statements.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25.

26.

27.

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H
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RREE
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R R aE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

28. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) As lessor
The Group leases its cruise ships (note 12) and
investment properties (note 13) under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms

ranging from one to three years.

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its charterers and

tenants falling due as follows:

Within one year R—FR
In the second to fifth years, REZZFRF
inclusive (BEEEMSF)

Annual Report 2018 £3§
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8. EMHERH
(@) AHAAEH

AEERBELEHELZHEERLR
W (ME12) RIREME (M &
13) - MARZEPNF—ZE=F -

RZE-NRZZE—+HF=H
=+—H ’$§%l$ﬁ%ﬁéﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁ}\&
MPEIZ 2 TR K EHER
T’iwi,ﬁﬁﬁwg\ﬂﬁlz*%ﬂﬂ&%ﬂfﬁﬂ
THEREWOT -

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
29,566 39,520
13,775 12,341
43,341 51,861




New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

28. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

29.

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its commercial

properties under operating lease arrangements, with

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—-—=F

28. KEHEE R (E)
(b) AFEBAEH

TEEDE  MmA

leases negotiated for terms ranging from two to E=fFo

three years.

B F5 3R R P EE
31 March 2018

—N\F=R=+—H

AEERBKEHELHHEHERS

&
AEZEBAN T

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group had total RZZE—N\EKZ-_ZFE—+F=H
future minimum lease payments under non- =+—8" $’$I$ETJ€$EH§&§¢J£‘“
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: EHERERN TIFRARNZ A 2 KK

Within one year
In the second to fifth years,

inclusive

COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed

in note 28(b) above, the Group had the following capital N

REESRBLBEMOT

2018 2017
—E-N\E —+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
R—FRA 196 174
ME_ZFERF
(BiEERME) 224 -
420 174
29. R
B £ BT aE28(b)FF il ) & & T B A

commitment as at the end of the reporting period. A o

Contracted, but not provided for,

motor vehicle

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FERx
ERENERESE
PRt -

RBEHR AREFEHATER

2017
—tF
HK$'000
TAET

605
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174 New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
HHtLEEEERRLQF

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 BB SRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial BATEHREREMED ZEEEIN - B
statements, the Group had the following material AEEAN AEEHEEABH A 2EARS
transactions with related parties during the year: N
(a) Related party transactions in connection with the @) BASEEEERB BB IR :

Group's operations:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 3 FERT FHET
Rental income received ERRARMEARZ

from a fellow subsidiary el A 0] 346 346
Management fee paid to a RN N

related company EEBEA (i) 104 101
Service fee paid to a TR AR 2

related company R 7% & (i) 454 -
Salary paid to Mr. Ng (Huang) SN &EMBEEECF @

Cheow Leng (iv) 135 135
Salary paid to Mr. Wilson Ng S EEKREEZFH V) 897 881
Sale of property, plant and LEWE  WERZE

equipment to a director TE=ER (vi) 80 -
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Related party transactions in connection with the

Group's operations: (continued)
Notes:

0)

(i)

(iii)

(v)

)

(vi)

The rental income was received based on a tenancy
agreement entered into between the Group and a
fellow subsidiary at a monthly rental rate of
HK$28,800 (2017: HK$28,800).

The management fee was charged based on an
agreement entered into between the Group and a
related company, Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
("Huang & Co"), for administrative services provided
at a monthly rate of approximately HK$8,670 (2017:
HK$8,400).

The service fee was paid to Universal
Shipmanagement Pte. Ltd., a related company, for the
provision of handling the drydocking arrangement of

a cruise ship on behalf of the Group.

The salary was paid to Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng,
who is the settlor and the trustee of a discretionary
trust which holds the entire interest in Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company of the

Company.

The salary was paid to Mr. Wilson Ng, who is one of
the discretionary beneficiaries of a discretionary trust
which holds the entire interest in Huang Group (BVI)
Limited, the ultimate holding company of the

Company.

Property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount
of HK$131,000 was sold to Mr. Yu Wai Man, who is
one of the directors of the Company, at a
consideration of HK$80,000 during the year (2017:
Nil).

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M sE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

30. BB AR5 ()
(a) BAKEEEERZMHHXS
()
B o

() HEBRARAEHRR—BRZRKH
& A B RT3 2 T8 & 15 % WA
A ©28,8008 (=T —+4F:
28,8008 7T) °

(iy BERERARASEE-—MRAKEA
AlHuang & Co (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd. ([Huang & Col) BtATIRHTT
BRBITLOBRRDN SAE
BEMLS6708IL (T —LF
8,400/ L) °

(i) RBEDARRANEEEHER
B MIs MmN T —fHkE
B2 ®Universal Shipmanagement
Pte. Ltd. °

(ivy FrehxNTEmEEE HR
—(A2RETIETARETA
MZEREXTALARRRRE
% 2 &]Huang Group (BVI) Limited
Z B EbKER -

) HFeDHXNTEEREE HR
—ArRERcAET U2 ER
s AN MZEEEXFAELARA
B HYERE A A]Huang Group (BVI)

Limitedz 2 &0 gz ©

(Vi) RAFERN - BES%131,000%8
THYE BERZELE T —
BARRESTREXSKE - FHA
KRB 80,000/ L (=T —+F :
) o
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R R aE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Due to a related company

©

As at 31 March 2018, as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of financial position, the
Group had an outstanding balance due to a related
company of HK$9,000 (2017: Nil) which arose from
the provision of administrative services by the
related company to a subsidiary of the Group. This
balance is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed

terms of repayment.

Commitments with related parties

1 April 2013, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into a service agreement with three-month
termination notice with Huang & Co, a related
company of the Company for the provision of
administrative services to the Group. The
management fee paid to Huang & Co for the year is
disclosed in note 30(a)(ii) to the financial
statements. As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a
total future minimum management fee payable to
Huang & Co amounting to approximately HK$27,000
(2017: HK$25,000).

On 31 March 2018, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into a one-year lease agreement ending 31
March 2019 with ETC Finance Limited (“ETC"), a
fellow subsidiary of the Company, to lease its
investment property to ETC. The rental income
received from ETC for the year is disclosed in note
30(a)(i) to the financial statements. As at 31 March
2018, the Group had a total future minimum lease
receivable from ETC amounting to HK$346,000
(2017: HK$346,000).
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder

of the Group's subsidiary:

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

30. B SR 5 (&)

(d)

Loan advanced from a REEME QA
non-controlling shareholder of Z IR IR AR R
the Group's subsidiary A2 E

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement entered into
between the Group and New Century Cruise Line
International Limited (“New Century Cruise Line"), a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, the
shareholder shall not demand repayment of this
loan unless a resolution in writing signed by all
shareholders of the subsidiary for the demand of
repayment has been duly passed at a general
meeting. In the opinion of the directors, after
confirming with New Century Cruise Line, there was
no intention for New Century Cruise Line to demand
the subsidiary of the Group to repay this loan in the
next twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the loan was classified as a non-
current liability. New Century Cruise Line is a fellow
subsidiary of the Company. The loan is unsecured

and interest-free.

The compensation of key management personnel of

the Company has been disclosed in note 8(a).

The related party transactions in respect of items (a) to

(d) above also constitute connected transactions or

continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

REE M B QR 2 FFEBRBIR A
ZER:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
171,823 171,823

ng N LRt [0S /N e 2
B% & BNew Century Cruise Line
International Limited ([ New Century
Cruise Linel) 7T3Z 2 lRER & - B
FZMBARINEZERREZENX
BRZEERBRENRRARE &
ERBEB BAHRRTEERER
ZEER - BEERA - K HENew
Century Cruise Lineff ! R % -
New Century Cruise LinefE&E &3k
REEZMN B A ARG AR
ARTZHEARNEEZBER -
bt ZEERDOBERERDE
f& - New Century Cruise Line& 7
RAZRRMBELR - ZERRE
HHERRE -

ARREBEEEABZFHME R
IR M T8 ()W EE -

bii(@)ZE(d)B 2B T XX 5 TEK £
MRAVETOAZEFMAEZBERH A
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178 New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
L EEBERBERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  31. & B4 RB R M

CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities AmEtaEENaEEE
Bank and other
borrowings
R 17 R H 8 =X
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—tFMHHA—H 23,383
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREELNE (1,603)
Foreign exchange movement HINE B B 1,657
At 31 March 2018 R-ZFE—-N\F=ZA=+—H 23,437
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

2018
—E-N\F
Financial assets

THMEE

Available-for-sale investment

Trade receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits and other receivables
(note 16)

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

AHRHEEZRE
EWE 5 &K
TEERITA

B REMEYER

(FiE16)
BRTEERFA

BaNRERE
BeRESEED

. ZEREszem I A

REBERR SEERIAZEESHE

mr
Financial
assets at Available-
fair value through for-sale
profit or loss - Loans and financial
held for trading receivables assets Total
RAVEE
sTARER
THEE- EFRR tEE
BFEE JE YB3k THEE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
= = 780 780
= 32,829 = 32,829
107 = = 107
= 7,686 = 7,686
139,154 = = 139,154
= 793,767 = 793,767
139,261 834,282 780 974,323

Annual Report 2018 &%

179



180

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows: (continued)

2018
—E-NE
Financial liabilities

THEE

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Accruals

Other payables and deposits
received (note 19)

Loan advanced from a
non-controlling shareholder
of the Group's subsidiary

Amount due to a related company

Annual Report 2018 £3§
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AERTR
HitfE

FE&H 3R

H ot e AR

Bz E (MEE19)

AEEMBLRR
ZIREBBR
BZERK

FEfTRABE R RN

A

FHELEEERERQA

.REHE sz I A (E)

RBERR SEERMIAZEESHE

mr ()
Financial
liabilities at
fair value through Financial
profit or loss — liabilities at
held for trading ~ amortised cost Total
RAVEE
FABEN DU 88 AR A
TRAE- FEZ
HEEE tRAE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER
3,291 = 3,291
= 23,437 23,437
= 1,681 1,681
= 25,759 25,759
= 171,823 171,823
= 9 9
3,291 222,709 226,000




New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHELEEERERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows: (continued)

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

. REHE sz I A (E)

RBERR SEeRIAZEESHE
(&)

2017
—E—+F
Financial assets
TRLEE
Financial
assets at Available-
fair value through for-sale
profit or loss - Loans and financial
held for trading receivables assets Total
BRATER
FTABED
TREE- ERR AHEE
RIEER & U BR 30 TREE X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET FHT FHET
Available-for-sale investment AREEZRE - - 780 780
Trade receivables JEURE 5 8E50 - 6,054 - 6,054
Derivative financial instruments T4 & @ T A 159 - - 159
Deposits and other receivables — $& & J E M fE UL
(note 16) R (fize) - 3,671 - 3671
Equity investments at fair value R AFBET A
through profit or loss BRmRERE 422,001 - - 422,001
Cash and cash equivalents BehBEeEED - 389,363 - 389,363
422,160 399,088 780 822,028
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows: (continued)

2017
e
Financial liabilities

TRER

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Accruals

Other payables and deposits
received (note 19)

Loan advanced from a
non-controlling shareholder

of the Group's subsidiary
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TEE®MIA
FHRRITR
HAtE R
JE &R
Hi A IRA R

Bz s (F19)

REEMNE AR
Z IR
BZER

FHELEEERERQA

.REHE sz I A (E)

RBERR SEERMIAZEESHE

mr ()
Financial
liabilities at
fair value through Financial
profit or loss — liabilities at
held for trading ~ amortised cost Total
BRATEE
FFAERR A 35 P R
TRMAGE— ez
HIEEE *HMERE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET
839 - 839
- 23,383 23,383
- 1,543 1,543
- 40,422 40,422
- 171,823 171,823
839 237,171 238,010
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FHELEEERERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 33.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's
financial instruments, other than those with carrying

amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

EMITANDFEERLFE
EREX
BEASHAEATEEAREIEN -
AEECRTANKRESERATEE
M

as follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
IRESE NEEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+ttF ZE-NF ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FHET FEL
Financial assets SRMEE
Equity investments at fair value 22 FEEHA
through profit or loss BankERE 139,154 422,001 139,154 422,001
Derivative financial instruments T4 &8I A 107 159 107 159
139,261 422,160 139,261 422,160
Financial liabilities ctREE
Derivative financial instruments {74 €8 T A 3,291 839 3,291 839

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, amount due to a related company, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, loan advanced from
a non-controlling shareholder of the Group’s subsidiary
and the non-current deposits received approximate to
their carrying amounts and accordingly no disclosure of

the fair values of these items is presented.

EEEDENE RELREFEY -
EWE SRR BRERNKIE ZBE
LEMEKERNEREE  BFEEAR
A R AR BT KRN SR AE &
TR A R 3R - fF B IRIT R EARE
A NEENBAFZ B R
ZEFRARGERBEN RSN A TFEE
A EEEKREASERE R L &S
BZEEENATEERE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

33. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group's management is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting
date, the Group’s management analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation. Independent
professional valuers are engaged for the valuation as
appropriate. The valuation is reviewed and approved by
the Group’s management. The valuation process and
results are discussed with the audit committee twice a

year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to

estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices. The fair values of equity option
accumulator and decumulator contracts are measured
using a valuation technique based on assumptions that

are supported by observable market prices or rates.
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FHELEEERERQA

33. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2018
Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

As at 31 March 2017
Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

.EMIEAENAFEERAFEE

EHERXR (&)

[NFEEEX
THRERAEESBIAND T EE
B

BRFEEFSENEE -

Fair value measurement using

DAY EETERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E B BEXW EXRT
mHHRE BEaAE BExaAE
(E-BR) (B=ERX) (B=BX) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FET FET
R-B-N$=A=+-8H
BAYEEETA
RuEMRERE 139,154 - - 139,154
TESMIA - 107 - 107
139,154 107 - 139,261
RZE—+F=A=1—H
BRATEERA
BaabhERE 422,001 - - 422,001
TAETRIA - 159 - 159
422,001 159 = 422,160
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BA RS R R aE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

33. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

(continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

33.

FHELEEERERQA

EMITANDFEERDFE
EER (&)

NP EEREX (EH)
TRETAEESRMT ANATEET

BRFIEETEMEE -

Fair value measurement using

AT REHERA

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BB EAT E i)
TmEHRE BEBAE B PN
(5-BR) € =39 (B=ERX) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THT THT TET
As at 31 March 2018 R-Z2-N\F=A=t+-H
Derivative financial instruments #T4 4T A - 3,291 - 3,291
As at 31 March 2017 R-ZE—tF=A=1+—H
Derivative financial instruments T4 ¢ & T & - 839 - 839

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2017: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and cash and
short-term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables and other payables, which arise

directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these

risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term

debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group does not hedge interest rate fluctuations.
However, management closely monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest

rate exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's profit after tax and
retained profits (through the impact on floating rate

borrowings).

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

4. BBERBEEBREREEK

AEBZIEEMIABRERABRITR
HiER  ARRERERER - 1E
ERMTAZIEENNIAAEELEES
E-AEBAEZREMEREERA
& Bl B B RR R & E A FE S AR
R MESEERNELEPELE -

.

AEEeRMTAEEAZIERRANE
Rk SNERR - EERR RBHER
[\ K A B R - EE S EH I
ZEEZFRARZBE BAHSAWT -

JES1
REBAZ TGN EEBRREEH
RAEEZZEHFERAE 2 RABEER

=

AREBEW BN XKZEETE I - A
m EEEETYERNEER IR
BERERERERHFERNFEER -

TERREMSERETE MAET
BHRARED Y ERT  AEERH
e P RARBEF (FF BT %
REB) LHEB 0 HEE -
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BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

2018 —B-N\F
Singapore dollar 3% T
Singapore dollar T
2017 —F—tF
Hong Kong dollar BT

Hong Kong dollar BT
Singapore dollar o T
Singapore dollar O3 T

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Most of the Group's revenue and costs were
denominated in Singapore dollars and Hong Kong dollars.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management closely monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.
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M RE b (&)

Increase/

(decrease)

in basis points

2
#m i)

S L B

15
(15)

15

(15)
15

(15)

34 B EREERERBE (&)

Increase/
(decrease)

in profit

after tax and
retained profits
MREL &R
RREBEA
&, (Bd)
HK$'000
TETT

(30)
30

M

27)
27

AEEEHRHEERER - ZFRART

SR EEMAELL

RRERNIINZE

BETEEMES - AKRBE 2 KNE 2K
ABKARTIAF IR T R BT REEE
7 o NEE B AT EIMES PBE - A
m-EEEeTYERIINERR - I
REFBERZEHHFERINERR -
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FHELEEERERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Singapore dollar exchange rate, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit after
tax and retained profits (due to changes in the fair value

of monetary assets and liabilities).

2018 —B-N\F

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens i B T3,
against the Singapore dollar N TRz (8

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens fied 7 7T 5,
against the Singapore dollar ¥ T E

2017 —F—tF

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens find 8 7T 5,
against the Singapore dollar RN Tz (A

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens e 7B T H
against the Singapore dollar ¥ T E

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

4. B EREREBFERBEK (&)

S L B (4D
TERERNBERARELMERRITT
B o T AR T EE KA gL IR A IR ED
ZEAT  NEBRRRE S F &R R
MNEAEEEELRBEATEELRE
B)UWEBOHRE -

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in foreign after tax and
currency rate retained profits
BRB 0% A

SN =R KRB ER
®h, O ) 2, OR)
% HK$'000

THTT

10 19,943
(10) (19,943)

10 14,014
(10) (14,014)
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BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group provides services only to recognised and
creditworthy third parties and related parties. It is the
Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is
not significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial
assets of the Group which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, available-for-sale investment and other
receivables, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry
sector. There is no significant credit risk as the tenants
have paid security deposits as collateral to the Group for
the lease of cruise ships and investment properties,
respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are disclosed in notes 15 and 16 to the
financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows
from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between

continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank loans and other interest-bearing loans.
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FHELEEERERQA

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Interest-bearing bank
borrowings

Interest-bearing other
borrowing

Loan advanced from a
non-controlling shareholder
of the Group's subsidiary

Accruals

Other payables and
deposits received

Derivative financial
instruments

Amount due to a related

company

b=1113
2

oF  em
S

5
I\
1

ok
2

oE  em
St

piis
=

7

AEEHELA
ZHERBR
BRZER

Jest A

Ef AR
BlEE

TEER
IE

e BIEE R 7]

HR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

34 B EREERERBEE (&)

REBE S ERE (&)

RIBEEATHRFTRER

AT #FIARE

ERmEMRzERAEIHA

2018
ZB-N\§
3to
On Lessthan  less than 1to5 Over 5

demand 3 months 12 months years years Total

=faA

EEX PR EOR
BE =R t=ER -ZIf RAEIF am
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT TER TERT TERT TERT TERT
— 359 1,078 5,751 21,802 28,990
697 = = = = 697
= = = 171,823 = 171,823
= 1,681 = = = 1,681
220 20,935 605 3,999 = 25,759
= 1,071 2,220 = = 3,291
9 = = = = 9
926 24,046 3,903 181,573 21,802 232,250
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND 4. B EREEEEREE (B)
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REESREK (&)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as RIBETRRITRER - LT #5AR&E
at the end of the reporting period, based on the ARk S MBEIEA : (F)

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
(continued)

2017
—F—t#F
3t
On  Llessthan  less than 1105 Over 5
demand 3 months 12 months years years Total
=fEA
EEX SR EOR
BE =R +Z@A —-Z1f HBRLF g

HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr  TAT  TEr  TEr  TAT  TER

Interest-bearing bank SRR

borrowings (Note) EENUIES) 908 329 990 5282 21350 28859
Interest-bearing other FEEM

borrowing fE 5% 530 - - - - 530
Loan advanced from a FEEMERT

non-controlling shareholder ZIERR

of the Group's subsidiary A7 EF - - - 171,823 - 171,823
Accruals e e - 1,543 - - - 1,543
Other payables and Hiy R RAR

deposits received BliEe 263 31,680 5356 3,123 - 40422
Derivative financial fiEsH

instruments ! - - 839 - - 839

1,701 33,552 7,185 180,228 21,350 244,016
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FHELEEERERQA

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Note:

As at 31 March 2017, included in interest-bearing bank
borrowings of the Group is a term loan in the amount of
HK$908,000. The loan agreement contained a repayment on-
demand clause giving the bank the unconditional right to call the
loan at any time and therefore, for the purpose of the above

maturity profile, the total amount was classified as “on demand"”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors did not believe
that the loan would be called, in its entirety or in part, within 12
months and they consider that the loan would be repaid in
accordance with the maturity date as set out in the loan
agreement. This evaluation was made considering the financial
position of the Group at the date of approval of these financial

statements, the Group’s compliance with the loan covenants, the

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

4. BHEREEBEBERBEE (&)

RBEEREE (%)
P &L -

RZZE—+tF=A=+—8 XEEKMFE
R 7718 3B 45 B H B 5X908,0007%8 I © B X
WA R ZRpE R BG4 TIRITE
BRHER ATEREEER Bt - ?)tr‘i
FHBMATE - BES A EERE

BEA LG EZHE FHERST
gRTEAREEXTLEE - RERR

FHRERSSREERBHEAPTRDEE
& - AT E BEI AN R BN AR % MmK Ht
ERBMNTBMRR  AEEETETESRR
s WEARRFE ARAKEEREERN
BZABHOR - REBEARNEEERAOMER

7

lack of events of default, and the fact that the Group has made RREIR - s ERITERDETHRITIR
all previously scheduled repayments on time. In accordance with BRI -
the terms of the loans of the Group, the contractual
undiscounted payment of interest-bearing bank borrowings at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:
3to
Less than less than 1to5 Over 5
3 months 12 months years years Total
=@A
DR ELR
=@A +t=@A —ZERF BB RF B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
2018 —E—N\F 359 1,078 5,751 21,802 28,990
2017 —E—+F 788 1,448 5,283 21,350 28,869
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BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND 34,

POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss (note 17)
as at 31 March 2018. The Group's listed investments are
listed on the stock exchanges of Hong Kong and
Singapore and are valued at quoted market prices at the

end of the reporting period.

The equity market indices for the following stock
exchanges, at the close of business of the nearest trading
day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and
their respective highest and lowest points during the year

were as follows:

31 March

2018

“2-N\%§

=ZA=t-H

Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index ~ & -84 EH 30,093
Singapore - Straits Times Index ¥ 13 — /& K65 R #5 & 3,428
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BBREREEBRRRBER (&)

iR 1B 4% L B

P 4 B 1 L i S 4 RO i BROK 7 R (i B
ESEEESMERNESESF R FE
BETHENER R_Z—-N\NF=H
=+—H - AEEFMEEOREERER
R E D BEAE AT EEFABEZOR
BEEMNMEHRLTRBZERSE
(M&E17) - AEEH ETRERER
BEMMMR BRI LT AR
HEHRREPIHMEE -

RBERARNROER S BEERBHER
B TIBRRSANREMNISEH
AERAFEREE BN &S R &IERH
LN

High/low 31 March High/low
2018 2017 2017
&/ & e &/ &
“B-\f ZA=ft-H —T—t#F

33,484/ 24,112 24,657/
23,724 19,595
3,612/ 3,175 3,188/

3,114 2,703
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B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 34 . BiIEMESEEERBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued) R B A% L B (48
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to every TRETREMBHMEEMRITIET -
10% change in the fair values of the equity investments BERERENMEAREESE -
of the Group, with all other variables held constant, based WAREEREKREZ AFEBESLER
on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting 100 &) 7 UK -
period.
Increase/
Carrying (decrease)
amount Increase/ in profit
of equity (decrease) after tax and
investments in fair value  retained profits
BBl A
RERE ATV EE RRBEF
WEESE #Bm OB B ORD)
HK$'000 % HK$'000
FAT FET
2018 —B-N\F¥F
Investments listed in: RELEHR
Hong Kong - Held-for-trading BEAE—REEE 87,144 10 7,277
(10) (7.277)
Singapore - Held-for-trading K —#EEE 52,010 10 5,201
(10) (5,201)
2017 —B—tF
Investments listed in: RE LR :
Hong Kong - Held-for-trading ERE-—REEE 266,767 10 22,275
(10) (22,275)
Singapore - Held-for-trading g —FEES 155,234 10 15,523
(10) (15,523)
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BA RS R R aE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total indebtedness divided by equity attributable to
owners of the Company. The Group's policy is to
maintain the gearing ratio below 500%. Total
indebtedness represents interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings. The gearing ratios as at the end of the

reporting periods were as follows:

Interest-bearing bank and FFRERITR
other borrowings H i & 5K

Equity attributable to owners ZN/NECIE ZS DN
of the Company JE 15 #E 2

Gearing ratio EREBELE
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34 B EREERERBE (&)

EXEHE
AEEEAER T ERERBERALE
BARNEFELZEEBZRAUNZER
BRBREALERUXFEEBIRS
BEREE-

AEERBEEEGHF 2ELERERNSE
BAEMNAE REFRAEELRNSE
B AEEAHEHSRRZIKE MK
REMEARBETHR - AEE TS
MEREMERRERS - BHE-F
—“N\EZFE-—tF=ZA=t+—HL*F
B BHEEEANBR BSRERE

AEBENBERNEABL RRERE
K- BERNERELRBBREHBBRALR
AHEAANEEELR AEBEZBRRE
BARREA E R EREE50% - BEH
RETBIRITREAMER - RIMEHKZ

BAHBELRAT -
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
23,437 23,383
1,636,670 1,474,493
1% 2%
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FHELEEERERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 35. A4\ B B9 BH IS A SR &

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

BRAARRRH®EHROTHRRKED

ERMT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RRE 287 212
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZEKE 550,389 548,418
Available-for-sale investment AfEHE 2 IRE 780 780
Total non-current assets FEMEE EARE 551,456 549,410
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade receivables U E Z R 14,848 1,205
Derivative financial instruments MTESMIT A 53 79
Prepayments, deposits and TERIE - RE K
other receivables H th JiE U BR X 1,610 951
Equity investments at fair value BRAFEERA
through profit or loss BENRERE 73,769 231,019
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEE&EEY 494,748 310,801
Total current assets mENEEERE 585,028 544,055
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L EEBERBERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5ER R EE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

35. AR AN BRI KR (&)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Derivative financial instruments PTETcmIA 1,646 419
Due to subsidiaries FEAS BT B~ B 5 IE 363,320 362,658
Interest-bearing other borrowing STEEAMER - 530
Accruals et 318 1,732 1,593
Total current liabilities BB EERE 366,698 365,200
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEETFHE 218,330 178,855
Net assets BEFRE 769,786 728,265

EQUITY 5

Issued capital B BT A 14,451 14,451
Reserves (Note) (M) 755,335 713,814
Total equity e iaE 769,786 728,265
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FHLEBEBERLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 35. K AE B BARRE (8)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: i =E -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: KABEBERENT ¢
Share Share
premium option  Contributed Retained
account reserve surplus profits Total
R 7 BRE
RER e BEAEH REEF CEl

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL THER TR THER THER

At 1 April 2016 RZE—-R"FNA—A 354,993 23,015 162,587 155,278 695,873
Total comprehensive income for the year A% 2 E I 5458 - - - 17,941 17,941
At 31 March 2017 WZE—+F=A=1+-H

and at 1 April 2017 BERZF—+5MA—H 354,993 23,015 162,587 173,219 713,814

Total comprehensive income for the year AFEE 2N EERE = = = 41,521 41,521

At 31 March 2018 RZE-NFZA=1+—H 354,993 23,015 162,587 214,740 755,335

The contributed surplus of the Company arose from: KRR ZEHBHBKE :

(i) the reorganisation mentioned in note 25(i), representing () MF25@()ATH 2 B4 B AR FIRIE A
the excess of the nominal value of the Company’s shares SESBEMBTROEEBRMKE
issued under the Group's reorganisation and the then MEBARER 2 GaEEFE LY
consolidated net assets value of the acquired subsidiaries; K&
and

(i) a transfer from the share premium account pursuant to the (i) WE-NANFESAZBETZRA
capital restructuring on 2 June 1999. EHME RN HEERPEDL -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R R aE

31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

35.

36.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
shareholders in certain circumstances prescribed by section 54

thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should

the related options expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 28 June 2018.

Annual Report 2018 £3§

35.

36.

FHELEEERERQA

RAT M BAARR R (B)

fsE - ()

BREBEBARECIBIF QAR (BER) &
ZOEDIESAMEPTR 2B TBERT - ARFZ
EHBHADKTRRE -

BREREEFECRL EFTEZBERE
ZAFEE BRI HRE N 240
MAERNNKZ TRRE-—FSHEE- 2
BRBRIERTEN  EEXESEERES
Betn s (BER - SiW B RIS B o2 Uk
AEERESERERE G -

MBHREZAE
BMBREER - N\FAA=+NB
EEE G R RETE -
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FHELEEERERQA

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements, is set out below.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFUBME

AEEBEREMKFRAREC TENE
ELMBBRRNRERE EE ABMFE
ZRESAEENT

RESULTS g
Year ended 31 March
HE=A=1-HLEFE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\§ —ZT—+tF ZE-RE ZT-RF ZT—NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT FHL FAT FET
REVENUE FROM BERSEER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS EEBHKA 202,055 182,616 32,247 147,911 67,797
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR REERERE
THE YEAR FROM EREEN
CONTINUING OPERATIONS wH (E8) 196,512 105,367 (22,442) 95,897 52,337
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR rEE-F
THE YEAR FROM A BRIEEE
DISCONTINUED OPERATION EREEN
wH (BR) - - - 16,944 (7,344)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE EREHEBA
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO BEREE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY wA (B8) 148,611 76,482 (32,376) 98,830 29,907
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L EEBERBERAA

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFPRBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-  A&EEBEE A EP BHFEEHEEEE HIZE AL
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial BZMBEHRERMNLCEESE = BEMIE
years, as extracted from the published audited financial TRERNBENT - (&)

statements, is set out below. (continued)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE BERFEZERER
INTERESTS
At 31 March
R=B=+—-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

—B-0\f —T-+F ZT-XF ZFT-hF ZT-MOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TAT TAT TAT

TOTAL ASSETS EEHE 1,935,125 1,733,983 1,673,833 1695271 1,766,003
TOTAL LIABILITIES BBEAE (230,556)  (241,715)  (246,044)  (225,771)  (352,352)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ~ JEi MR % (67,899) (17,775) (27,621) (13,703) 16,334

1,636,670 1,474,493 1,400,168 1,455,797 1,429,985
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Description

R

Shop No. 23A,

Ground Floor (Level 2),

Kwai Chung Plaza,

7-11 Kwai Foo Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong
EREMREBEERT- 115
BRSO T (B ) 23A5% &

Unit Nos. 3810 and 3811,

38th Floor, West Tower,

Shun Tak Centre,

168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong

&8 T 5 & 168-2005%

BEEp O RE3sE

38101 3811%

Ground Floor including its cockloft,

Chi Fu Building, No. 301 Portland Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

FR R AU EH30158
EEEHMT (BREEE)

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

REWM=E

Use

A&

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

EES

YZEFTE
31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

Percentage
Nature of interest

b2 BB

Medium-term 100
leasehold

R E

Medium-term 100
leasehold

R E

Medium-term 100
leasehold

RHEIEE
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

MZEFTE
31 March 2018
—E-)\F=ZA=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Description

B

Shop 5, Ground Floor,

Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
FRBNEEE AEIT L H43HR
B LRSI

Shop 3, Ground Floor,

Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BENEREAEIT TH43H%
BT LRSI 358

762/764/766/768

North Bridge Road,
Singapore 198730/198732/
198734/198736
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REWE (&)

Use Nature

k= i
Commercial Medium-term
EES leasehold
FHIFE

Commercial Medium-term
=S leasehold
FHIFE

Commercial Freehold
[ KA ZERE

Percentage
of interest
EEADL

100

100

100
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